

03/12/2020

1 City of Detroit Board of Police Commissioners
1301 - Third Street
2 Detroit, Michigan 48203
Thursday, March 12, 2020
3 6:30 p.m.

4

5

Meeting before the Board of Police

6

Commissioners at 1001 W. Fort Street, Detroit, Michigan

7

on Thursday, March 12, 2020.

8

9

10 COMMISSIONERS:

11

William Davis
Reverend Jim Holley

12

Annie Holt
Elizabeth Brooks

13

Willie Bell

14

Evette Griffie

15

CHAIRPERSON: Lisa Carter

16

DEPUTY CHIEF: Elaine Bryant

17

18

19

20

Reported by:

21

Sherrayna Coleman, CSR-6485

22

23

24

25

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ACTION	PAGE
Call to Order.....	03
Invocation.....	03
Introduction of Commissioners.....	03
Introduction of BOPC Staff.....	04
Approval of Agenda March 12, 2020.....	05
Approval of Minutes March 5, 2020.....	06
BOPC Officers' Report.....	06
Resolution.....	12
Chief of Police Report.....	19
Presentation.....	30
Board Secretary Report.....	53
Unfinished Business.....	56
New Business.....	57
Announcements.....	58
Oral Communications from Audience.....	58
Adjournment.....	64

1 Detroit, Michigan

2 Thursday, March 12, 2020

3 6:29 p.m.

4 --- --- ---

5 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Good evening. Welcome
6 to the Board of Police Commissioners monthly community
7 meeting. My name is Lisa Carter, Chair of the
8 Commission and I will be conducting this evening's
9 meeting. On behalf of the Board, for those of you in
10 attendance thank you for joining us. And for those of
11 you viewing the meeting on your local government cable
12 channel thank you for joining our meeting.

13 Commissioner Shirley Burch, Elizabeth Brooks
14 and Darryl Brown have been excused from tonight's
15 meeting. Today we have invited Chaplain Yolanda
16 Stinson to provide the Invocation.

17 (Whereupon Chaplain Stinson provided the
18 Invocation.

19 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you, ma'am. At
20 this time we will have introductions by the
21 Commissioners beginning to my left.

22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Willie Bell, District 4.

23 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Good evening. Annie
24 Holt, At Large.

25 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: Jim Holly, At Large.

1 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: William Davis, District
2 7.

3 MS. WHITE: Madame Chairperson, you do not
4 have a quorum at this time.

5 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you, Ms. White.
6 At this time we will move into introductions of the
7 Board staff. Ms. White.

8 MS. WHITE: Thank you, Madame Chairperson.
9 Before going into the introductions we have Sergeant
10 Allen Quin who is taping our meeting this evening,
11 Media Services is conducting the audio and visual for
12 this evening and Ms. Shay Coleman is our court
13 reporter. And starting to my immediate left I'll ask
14 the Board of Police Commissioners staff to stand and
15 introduce themselves.

16 (Whereupon the BOPC staff introduced
17 themselves.)

18 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you, staff. At
19 this time I would like to introduce sitting in for the
20 Chief of Police Commander Elaine Bryant -- I'm sorry --
21 Deputy Chief Elaine Bryant.

22 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Good afternoon.
23 Through the Chair, as you stated, I'm Deputy Chief
24 Elaine Bryant.

25 (Whereupon the Chief of Police staff

1 introduced themselves.)

2 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you very much.

3 Also Commissioners, at this time I'd like to

4 acknowledge Commissioner Evette Griffie and

5 Commissioner Willie Burton who came in a short time

6 ago. Thank you for joining us. Let's see. At this

7 time do we have any elected officials or VIPs, civic

8 leaders or their representatives? Can you please stand

9 at this time and give your name for the record.

10 (Whereupon the above-mentioned

11 individuals introduced themselves.)

12 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you, ma'am. At

13 this time, Commissioners, you have before you the

14 Agenda for March 12, 2020. Is there a motion?

15 COMMISSIONER HOLT: So moved.

16 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Support.

17 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Its been moved and

18 supported that we approve the Agenda for March 12,

19 2020. Is there any discussion?

20 (None responded.)

21 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Those in favor?

22 (Several Commissioners responded by

23 indicating aye.)

24 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Those opposed?

25 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Opposed.

1 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Motion carries. At this
2 time, Commissioners, you have before you the Minutes
3 from March 5, 2020. Is there a motion for approval?

4 COMMISSIONER HOLT: So moved.

5 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Support.

6 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Its been moved and
7 supported that we approve the Minutes for March 5,
8 2020. Is there any discussion?

9 (None responded.)

10 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Those in favor?

11 (Several Commissioners responded by
12 indicating aye.)

13 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Those opposed?

14 (None responded.)

15 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: The motion carries.

16 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Tonight -- I'm going to
17 move on to my report. Tonight we are in Downtown
18 Services. Both Commissioner Burton and I represent
19 Downtown Services. Commissioner Burton, at this time
20 if you'd like to extend a welcome please do so at this
21 time.

22 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Sure. I just wanted to
23 say welcome to Downtown Services District 5 and
24 District 6. We look forward to, Commissioner Madame
25 Chair Carter and I, are looking forward to going around

1 our district talking to our residents. Thank you.

2 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner
3 Burton. We are delighted to meet at the Wayne County
4 Community College District Curtis L. Ivery Downtown
5 Campus, which everyone is looking forward to its grand
6 opening soon. I want to highlight that Wayne County
7 Community College District President Curtis Ivery was
8 recently celebrated and honored at the DPDs Historic
9 Black History event for his activism, contributions and
10 accomplishments. So we thank President Ivery for
11 welcoming us to this great institution and we say
12 congratulations again. At this time I will ask that
13 Mr. Rodney Patrick, Dean of Continuing Education,
14 please come forward and give any welcoming remarks.

15 MR. PATRICK: Good evening, my name is Rodney
16 Patrick. I'm the Dean of Continuing Education here at
17 Wayne County Community College. I don't want my back
18 to you guys.

19 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: You don't want your back
20 to us.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Just use the mic, please.

22 MR. PATRICK: Again, my name is Rodney
23 Patrick, Dean of Continuing Education and Workforce
24 Development here at the Downtown Campus Curtis L. Ivery
25 Campus. So on behalf of our chancellor, Curtis L.

1 Ivery, our campus president Ms. Denise Shannon, we
2 would like to welcome you to the campus this evening.
3 We want you to have a great meeting. We hope it's
4 fulfilling and progress is made. We most certainly --
5 we have one rule here at the campus. No one is to
6 leave the room without taking a continuing education
7 booklet with them. Please do that and browse through
8 and take a look at the classes and offers we have.
9 With everything that's going on outside these walls we
10 want everyone to have a safe prosperous evening.

11 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you so much. I
12 would again like to thank you for joining us this
13 evening. The Corona Virus was recently declared a
14 global pandemic. Health, safety and well-being is a
15 primary importance. I want to continue emphasizing and
16 urging everyone to use safety precautions such as
17 staying informed about the virus, washing your hands
18 for at least 20 seconds, avoid touching your face,
19 staying at home if you're not well and utilizing other
20 safety measures advised by the City, the Center for
21 Disease Control and the World Health Organizations.
22 Please stay safe and stay informed.

23 As we do every week, on behalf of the Board I
24 want to express the Board's concern and support for
25 fallen and injured officers and their families.

1 Officer safety and citizen protection are ranked as two
2 of the most important priorities of the Board. Our
3 Board receives a weekly report from the Department
4 listing injured officers and I ask that Deputy Chief
5 please provide us with any updates during your report.

6 The Board of Police Commissioners meets every
7 week except for Thanksgiving and Christmas holiday
8 periods. We meet at Public Safety Headquarters every
9 Thursday at 3 p.m. except for the second Thursday of
10 the month in which we hold a community meeting at 6:30
11 p.m. Under the Detroit City Charter Article 7 Chapter
12 8 the Board of Police Commissioners is empowered to
13 provide civilian oversight and supervisory control of
14 the police department.

15 Our Board investigates non-criminal citizens
16 complaints, monitors the Department's operations and
17 works with the Mayor and the Chief of Police to
18 establish police policies, rules and regulations. As
19 an oversight agency the Board has the broad
20 responsibility to protect citizens, protect the City of
21 Detroit from frivolous lawsuits and create policies to
22 enforce strict adherence to department policies.

23 Additionally, the Board works to eliminate
24 police misdemeanor conduct, discriminatory police
25 practices and unnecessary use of force by police. The

1 Board also believes in transparency, community input
2 and accountability. As a civilian oversight agency we
3 protect the rights of citizens. Our objective is to
4 increase the quality of life of residents and visitors
5 to Detroit.

6 Commissioners, there are several important
7 items for your consideration and information in your
8 Board packet that was emailed to you on Tuesday and in
9 your packet today. Today we have one Resolution
10 honoring Mr. Paul Kado and four Certificates that will
11 be awarded to Mr. Brandon Bryce (ph), Mr. Greg Dunmar
12 (ph), Ms. Jessica Karimore (ph) and Mr. Damon Mitchell
13 (ph). At the appropriate time I will ask the awardees
14 to accept their Resolution and Certificates
15 respectfully.

16 Today on our Agenda we have two formal
17 presentations to the Board; one from Human Resources
18 presented by Dr. Marcella Anderson, the Director of
19 Police Personnel and one from Downtown Services
20 presented by Commander Franklin Hayes and Captain Javon
21 Johnson (ph). From the Chief's Office I am requesting
22 an update on citywide statistics and other critical
23 issues facing the Department. I am also requesting
24 updates on the Department's efforts to combat the
25 Corona Virus 19 and the recent accidental shooting that

1 occurred at Police Headquarters. From our interim
2 Board Secretary Ms. White I'm asking that you provide
3 us with various updates regarding incoming
4 correspondence.

5 I also want to announce a few reminders. For
6 your convenience, the Office of the Chief Investigator
7 will have the citizen complaint table at every meeting
8 for those interested in filing a complaint regarding
9 alleged non-criminal misdemeanor conduct. You may
10 visit the table for more information. I would also
11 like to remind you of the 2020 Census. Households will
12 start receiving invitations to complete the on-line
13 phone or email questionnaires. Also, the City of
14 Detroit will still host the Census Rally on Saturday,
15 March 14th at Martin Luther King Jr. High School for
16 volunteers to pick up census materials. Please visit
17 the City's website for important changes to the Census
18 Rally given the recent announcement from the City and
19 the State's Health Department regarding the Corona
20 Virus. Due to the recent declaration of the Corona
21 Virus and for the community safety, we will have
22 limited public comments from the audience. The Board
23 continues to accept citizens' feedback by telephone,
24 email, fax and mailing. The telephone number to the
25 Board's office is 313-596-1830. The phone number for

1 the Office of the Chief Investigator is 596-2499.
2 Again, citizens are encouraged to utilize telephone,
3 email, fax and mailing to voice your concerns or your
4 complaints.

5 At this time please place your cell phones or
6 other electronic devices on vibrate to prevent
7 interrupting the meeting. And, finally, in the spirit
8 of effective communication, please treat each other
9 respectfully and professionally. Thank you. My
10 objective is to run an orderly meeting and conclude
11 within a reasonable time. Thank you. At this time we
12 will have the Resolution honoring Mr. Paul Kado and
13 that's going to be read by Commissioner Holt.

14 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Thank you, Mr. Paul Kado.
15 Whereas, Mr. Paul Kado has worked in his family
16 business in downtown Detroit for over 30 years. From
17 the age of 13, Mr. Kado started working at City Market,
18 the store opened by his father Andre Kado to provide
19 food and other necessities. City Market has served
20 downtown residents, workers, and visitors in the good
21 and bad times, and has thrived over time; and

22 Whereas, Mr. Kado has shown extraordinary
23 leadership and support of public safety. In the winter
24 of 2019, Downtown Services sought to expand Project
25 Green Light. Several businesses showed interest, and

1 Downtown Services brought the group together as a
2 proposed Green Light Corridor. Due to the number of
3 independent businesses, the Detroit Police Department
4 needed private assistance to accomplish the goal of
5 forming the Green Light Corridor. Of the numerous
6 businesses involved, only one volunteered. That person
7 was Mr. Kado. Because of Mr. Kado's assistance and
8 perseverance, a strong advancement in public safety is
9 underway, and Downtown Detroit has its third Green
10 Light Corridor, consisting of 11 businesses; and

11 Whereas, his civic support is rooted in the
12 hardy work ethic that he learned at a very young age.
13 He was also taught that good service is the only
14 service. When asked about his motto or mantra behind
15 his long business success, Mr. Kado simply stated: "We
16 are here to serve the community. Without community
17 support, we are nothing." The Downtown community and
18 the Police Department are fortunate to have Mr. Kado in
19 civic and business leadership roles for the renaissance
20 of our entire City; and

21 Now, therefore, be it resolved that the
22 Detroit Board of Police Commissioners speaking for the
23 citizens of the city of Detroit and the Detroit Police
24 Department acknowledges the dedicated, diligent,
25 committed support of Mr. Paul Kado. His service and

1 devotion to improving the quality of life for the
2 citizens in the Downtown Services and throughout the
3 city of Detroit, merits our highest regards. Detroit
4 Board of Police Commissioners.

5 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Griffe.

6 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: I'd like to say a few
7 words about Mr. Kado if I could. I had the distinct
8 pleasure of knowing Mr. Kado and his family, I see his
9 brother in the audience and some of his children, for
10 over ten years now and I want to say it is an honor
11 that we are honoring you because I know all the many
12 things you have done. Not only does he run a major a
13 business, he has done so for quite some time. And it's
14 always, when people have asked for donations, whatever
15 they may be, whether it is food or monetary support, so
16 I'd like to join you in the picture if you don't mind.

17 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Sure.

18 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: And say thank you so
19 much for your service.

20 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: On behalf of the
21 Detroit Police Department we'd like to present you the
22 Detroit Police Department Certificate of Recognition to
23 you, Mr. Paul Kado, resident of the City of Detroit and
24 recognition for the following outstanding service and
25 cooperation. Your involvement in the community and

1 service to the City of Detroit demonstrate a spirit and
2 commitment that is worthy of this recognition. Signed
3 by our Chief of Police James E. Craig.
4 Congratulations, sir.

5 There's another group of individuals that I'd
6 like to present to you the Spirit of Detroit Award,
7 which is presented herewith as an expression of the
8 gratitude and esteem of the citizens of Detroit to Mr.
9 Paul Kado in recognition of exceptional achievement
10 outstanding leadership and dedication to improving the
11 quality of life by the City Council of Detroit,
12 Michigan, and this is signed by nine members of the
13 Detroit City Council. Again, congratulations.

14 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Mr. Kado, would you like
15 to say a few words?

16 MR. KADO: Well, I'm very, very honored. I
17 was expecting to just come in and get an award when I
18 spoke to Captain Johnson and was very excited to
19 receive a couple awards from the Police Department as
20 well as City Council. I'd like to thank the City of
21 Detroit first for allowing my family to do business
22 here for over 40 years now and 33 years celebrating
23 right in downtown at the corner of Brush and Congress.
24 That's very important.

25 I'd also like to thank these fine gentlemen

1 and women of the Detroit Police Department. I know
2 it's very like goes unsaid, but they really are
3 important to continue the success of businesses in the
4 city. When people feel safe, when people feel
5 welcomed, they come downtown and other parts of the
6 city now that they're populating in neighborhoods. So
7 it's very important to acknowledge them so I'd like to
8 thank them each individually for all the work they do
9 day in and day out.

10 I'd like to thank all of you for giving up
11 your time from your daily lives and work placement. So
12 thank you. More importantly, I think it's important
13 that my kids are here today. I like to bring them into
14 the city to see what it is being a part of a community.
15 It's very important to have civic involvement in
16 everything that you do in all facets of life. So I'd
17 like to thank them for coming as well. So, with that
18 said, thank you all.

19 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Madame Chair.

20 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Griffie.

21 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: I'd like to move that
22 we adopt the Resolution honoring Mr. Paul Kado.

23 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: Second.

24 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Its been moved and
25 supported that we adopt the Resolution honoring

1 Mr. Paul Kado. Is there any discussion?

2 (None responded.)

3 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Those in favor?

4 (Several Commissioners responded by
5 indicating aye.)

6 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Those opposed?

7 (None responded.)

8 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: The motion carries.

9 Thank you all and thank you, again, Mr. Kado and
10 family. At this time we have Certificates that will be
11 presented by Commissioner Burton for Mr. Brandon Bryce,
12 Mr. Greg Dunmar, Ms. Jessica Karimore and Mr. Damon
13 Mitchell. If you're here please step forward.

14 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Thank you. So, you
15 know, in District 5 and -- one of the things we want to
16 acknowledge the work that men and women are doing every
17 day to make a difference in our community. There's so
18 many different wonderful individuals we want to
19 acknowledge today. I'm very excited to see that
20 Mr. Paul Kado received a nice Resolution by the Detroit
21 Board of Police Commissioners but also by the Detroit
22 Police Department for the great work that he's doing in
23 our community to make difference.

24 Today I bring another distinguished man
25 before you, which is Brandon Bryce; the great work that

1 he's doing every day to make a difference with our
2 youth with the Boy Scouts of America. So today we have
3 Certificate of Appreciation for Brandon Bryce from the
4 Board of Police Commissioners for exemplary work and
5 your service that you do every day here in the
6 community.

7 I remember I think I came up to the Boy
8 Scouts of America not long ago I saw so many youth
9 there and so many parents. I'd like for you to share a
10 few words about some of the services you are doing in
11 the community, but welcome and thank you so much for
12 being here this evening.

13 MR. BRYCE: I won't take too long. I am the
14 son of a Baptist minister. So I just want to first of
15 all say thanks to the Board of Police Commissioners.
16 The work that we do doesn't just stop with the youth
17 that we serve. This year we had a paramount
18 opportunity because this year we allowed young girls to
19 experience the same traditions that we have for over a
20 hundred years.

21 So I'll give you a couple quick facts and
22 I'll get off the mic. The first thing is Detroit has
23 the second oldest Boy Scout Council in the country.
24 Detroit has the largest Boy Scout Cadet Program in the
25 country. And so in Detroit also there are four

1 presidents of the Boy Scouts of America who were named
2 after Detroit public high schools. So Detroit is Boy
3 Scout history but we look forward to the next hundred
4 years of serving young men and young women and to make
5 their character and development and make them great
6 citizens of this great nation.

7 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you for your
8 service Mr. Bryce. At this time we will have the
9 Chief's Report from Deputy Chief Bryant.

10 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Thank you, Madame
11 Chair. First I will report out on critically injured
12 officers. We have Officer Walden Johnson (ph) who was
13 injured back in 2018. He is still recovering from a
14 gunshot wound in a long-term care facility. We have
15 Officer Christopher Thurston (ph) assigned to the 3rd
16 Precinct. He was also injured in 2018 by a motor
17 vehicle accident. He's recovering at home at this
18 time. Officer Falit Atoum Bisi (ph) who suffered a
19 gunshot wound in 2019 is recovering at home as well.
20 He's from the 12th Precinct. We have Traffic
21 Enforcement Officer Mark Robbins who was injured in a
22 motor vehicle accident recovering at home earlier this
23 year 2020, and Detective Kimberly Becum (ph) who is
24 assigned Special Victims Unit suffered from accidental
25 gunshot wound. She's recovering at home. So that

1 particular incident happened at Headquarters. She
2 sustained a gunshot wound after the accidental
3 discharge of her Department issued firearm so she is
4 recovering at home at this time.

5 I'd also like to talk about crime statistics
6 at the moment. So as of Monday March 9th we were up
7 10.2% overall in part one crimes, which includes
8 criminal homicides, aggravated assaults, non-fatal
9 shootings, robberies and carjackings. What I would
10 like to say that we also look at a comparison. That's
11 overall from 2019 to 2020 year-to-date. We look at a
12 comparison for the last 28-day period to see if there's
13 been any significant change and I'm happy to report
14 that in the past 28 days we've shown a decrease of 10.9
15 percent in violent crimes based off the work that we've
16 been doing over the past 28 days; decrease in criminal
17 homicides of 29.2%, a decrease in aggravated assaults
18 14.6%, decrease in non-fatal shooting at 23.3%, a
19 decrease in robberies 16.4%. That's just over 28 days,
20 and I'd like to contribute a big part of that to our
21 effort that we've been doing with our marijuana
22 enforcement.

23 I'd like to read some statistics in regards
24 to where we are with that. Its been seven weeks that
25 we've been doing that initiative. So far since the

1 beginning of that enforcement, which was January 22nd,
2 we've arrested 379 felons, 110 misdemeanors arrests,
3 137 guns seized, 4,882 ordinances issued, 408 vehicles
4 impounded, 20 stolen vehicles recovered, 2,189 grams of
5 suspected marijuana seized, 213.7 grams of suspected
6 cocaine, 1,130 illegal pills, 59.2 grams of suspected
7 heroine and 6 grams of suspected meth. It is to be
8 noted that these particular enforcements that I'm
9 reporting out on are specific to those areas that we
10 believe are driving the crime with regards to illegal
11 narcotics. So we noticed that over the 28 days that I
12 mentioned decrease in our crime. So we think we're on
13 the right track in regards to what we're doing.

14 In regards to the Corona Virus and what the
15 Department is doing, I'd like to report out that the
16 Department is taking precautions and putting protocols
17 in place in case of emergency. We have prepared a
18 Continuity of Operation Plan which details a succession
19 plan in the event that the Chief of Police, the
20 Assistant Chief or Deputy Chief are not able to perform
21 their tasks. We have put in place the people that
22 would take those positions and be able to provide that
23 function.

24 We also have placed alternate facilities and
25 additional manpower in regards to say a whole precinct

1 has to be for some reason shut down. We have a
2 contingency plan in order to make sure we don't skip a
3 beat in regards to providing the services such as
4 answering police runs, responding to 9/1/1 emergencies,
5 making sure that we address the arrests that are
6 happening in that area. So we are putting plans in
7 place.

8 We also in that contingency plan we have
9 necessary equipment and supplies. We are specifically
10 dealing with, like a said, those critical functions
11 that we have to make sure that we address in case of
12 emergency. We're also following CBC protocols in
13 regards to making sure that our people are washing
14 their hands, as you stated, Madame Clair. Also,
15 sending personnel home who have fever and cough.
16 Urging them to stay home if they know they're sick with
17 fever and cough. We don't want them to come in and end
18 up contaminating.

19 We're providing sanitation supplies for
20 cleaning equipment and work areas. We're providing
21 masks and gloves and hand sanitizers to employees. We
22 have additional building -- we had additional personnel
23 come in to clean the buildings multiple times today
24 because, as you know, the surfaces we want to make sure
25 that we're cleaning them off. We're eliminating large

1 scale meetings, events that are critical to the
2 operation to decrease exposure -- chance of exposure.

3 We're trying to, like in the instance you
4 don't have to meet, we'll use phone conference calls
5 where possible. We're asking that people, you know,
6 our department we're notorious for giving hugs. We
7 like to hug. So we're asking people to kind of modify
8 that; maybe do an elbow bump instead of handshakes,
9 instead of hugging. We're asking that you avoid
10 touching your face. When sneezing or coughing cover
11 your mouth and nose with tissue, discard the tissue.
12 If you don't have tissue use your upper sleeve.

13 Also, because of the Corona virus and the
14 concerns that are coming about there have been a couple
15 events that are going to be postponed regarding that.
16 One of them in particular is going to be the graduation
17 exercise. They will be sworn in but we're going to
18 have to celebrate at a later date in regards to having
19 the full blown ceremony. Also, I think that they're
20 going to end up postponing -- they're going to end up
21 not participating in the Baker Vegas Race as well,
22 because as you know, they will have to travel to Las
23 Angeles. With that, I'll take any questions.

24 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Through the Chair.

25 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Griffie.

1 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Thank you for your
2 report. I just have a couple questions. One is the
3 Detroit Detention Center, which is the jail that I
4 believe that is manned by the Detroit Police
5 Department. You mentioned cleaning. I'm assuming that
6 we're going to also ramp up our cleaning efforts there.
7 I'm not sure if that facility allows visitors and if so
8 are there -- is visitation on lockdown?

9 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: I don't know if they --
10 I don't have that. Is there someone here that can
11 answer that question? I don't think that they allow
12 visitors because it's not -- the DDC is just a holding
13 facility. We house the prisoners and then once their
14 warrant is arraigned they go to a Wayne County
15 facility. So I don't think that there's visitors
16 allowed at the Detroit Detention Center, but we are
17 taking precautions not only for our employees but as
18 well as the citizens that are housed at DDC.

19 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: And my final question
20 is obviously with the news there's been a rash of
21 people buying products and I'm sure it's hard to find.
22 Is there any way the community can help with donations?
23 Do you need hand sanitizer? Police are an essential
24 function and its very important we keep our officers as
25 safe as possible because they don't have the privilege

1 as many other people do working from home or being
2 remote. They have to be out in the community. So how
3 can we help? How can we get people to help? Do you
4 have any advice or assistance from any of us on the
5 Board to do that?

6 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Absolutely. I'm going
7 to say that we always can use the assistance. We
8 appreciate the assistance of the public, the community,
9 the citizens. I'm going to say that I would reach out
10 to either your local precinct if you're in a particular
11 precinct and maybe ask if they need hand sanitizers or
12 donations. Or you can reach out to Media Relations
13 596-1800 and if you want to donate or see how you can
14 help you can reach out to them. Maybe they can give
15 you specific information in regards to how to do that.

16 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Thank you so much.

17 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you.

18 Commissioners, any other questions? Commissioner
19 Davis.

20 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Question. As it relates
21 to the homicides and the carjackings I see that's a
22 tremendous increase. It looks like we're going towards
23 a record year as relates to homicides and carjackings.
24 Is there any action plans to try to reduce this?

25 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: Through the Chair, so

1 just like I stated in my report, when you look at the
2 homicides over the last 28 days we have seen a decrease
3 so we do believe that we're trending in the right
4 direction with regard to what we're doing in the
5 enforcement. The carjackings, absolutely, we are up.
6 Even in that 28 day period we're up so we definitely
7 have work to do in regards to making sure that we deal
8 with the carjacking situation. Deputy Chief Marlon
9 Wilson isn't here today, but I will make sure that I
10 address that concern as shop falls under his command to
11 make sure we address that for you.

12 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Also, I know a couple
13 people called me and was asking did the Neo Nazis, when
14 they had their parade here, did any of them get
15 tickets?

16 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: I can't answer that at
17 this time. I'll have to get back with you.

18 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: That's it.

19 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: Madame Chairperson,
20 thank you very much. Back to the virus. I'd like to
21 know -- I know that the Chief is like the Deputy Mayor
22 as well. Is it any effort -- is there any effort in
23 terms of bringing diverse institutions in Detroit
24 together, a meeting just in case, that we're talking
25 about schools closing, Wayne State closing, public

1 schools closing. In other words, is there an effort
2 for everybody, the major institution leadership, is
3 talking about and then what would that do in terms of
4 the police department and securing the property? Is
5 there any contingency plan going on that if something
6 like this happened what's going on in Washington or in
7 California? Are we doing anything getting ready for
8 this just in case?

9 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: So, through the Chair,
10 as I stated, we have our continuing operation plan, but
11 that's not just specific to the Detroit Police. It's
12 the City of Detroit. Every entity, every department
13 entity, has been tasked with making sure that they're
14 coming up with a contingency plan in regards to the
15 schools within the City or even the State for that
16 matter. As you know, Homeland Security and the
17 Governor have their hands in that. So they're making
18 sure that everyone is on the same page in regards to
19 the information that's being given out and everything
20 like that. So it's not just Detroit Police that's
21 coming up with a contingency plan. It's the City and
22 the State as well.

23 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: Thank you very much.

24 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: And the County.

25 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: I'm sorry. And the

1 County.

2 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Burton.

3 COMMISSIONER BURTON: I have a few questions
4 by the way. Thank you, Madame Chair. Questions I want
5 to know is the Detroit Police Department using
6 Stingray?

7 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: I'm sorry. I can't
8 answer that.

9 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Okay. Is they using
10 electronic cell phone tracking devices;

11 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: I'm sorry. I can't
12 answer that.

13 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Okay. Are you -- are
14 the Detroit Police Department using something called
15 Face Station?

16 DEPUTY CHIEF BRYANT: I'm sorry. I can't
17 answer that. I will make sure I get back with you.

18 DEPUTY CHIEF BURTON: So Detroit Police
19 Department has been using electronic tracking device,
20 which is formerly known as Stingray. I'd like to know
21 as a Commissioner for the 5th District when did the
22 Detroit Police Department get it? Where is the warrant
23 for every time the Detroit Police Department used this
24 technology, which is called Stingray, which was
25 purchased at \$622,000? Why do the Detroit Police

1 Department didn't come through the Police Board of
2 Commissioners for recommendation or approval? The
3 Board of Police Commissioners are responsible for
4 rules, regulations and policies. Something like this
5 should have come before the Police Commissioners but it
6 didn't.

7 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: Madame Chair.

8 COMMISSIONER BURTON: And also, where is the
9 policy? We would like to see the policy. We would
10 like to see the warrant for each time that this was
11 used and we would like to see this as of next week.

12 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner, I was
13 going to say that I believe the Chief addressed that
14 question last week or two weeks ago on two different
15 occasions regarding Stingray or whatever-

16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Madame Chairperson, he
17 was disingenuous and he tap danced with words. It's
18 unacceptable.

19 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: I'm still talking. So I
20 believe that he addressed that issue two weeks ago or
21 on two different occasions and you are able to go
22 on-line and review what he said. He said that the
23 Department does not use -- utilize Stingray and he had
24 no knowledge of the Department utilizing Stingray. So,
25 with that, we are moving on to our next report. Thank

1 you, Deputy Chief, for your report. At this time we're
2 going to have the Human Resources Report by
3 Dr. Marcella Anderson.

4 DR. ANDERSON: Greetings, Honorable Board.
5 I'm here to give the HR Report for the month of
6 February 2020. Our staffing numbers are as follows:
7 For sworn we have 2,514 sworn officers, civilian 625
8 for a total of 3,139 employees. Our current sworn
9 recruiting numbers for this fiscal year are total
10 applicants 4,010, in process 26. We've hired 140. We
11 have 234 listed as lack of interest temporary
12 disqualified 2,811, disqualified permanently 557 and
13 waiting MCOLE testing 242.

14 For our written and physical agility
15 examination result for the month of February we had 203
16 scheduled, 123 appeared, 88 passed. For the physical
17 agility, 121 scheduled, 86 appeared and 46 passed. We
18 had 24 student police officers graduate from the Police
19 Academy in February. We hired four civilian staff
20 members and for our residency report we have 567 sworn
21 officers that live in the City, 344 civilians that live
22 in the City of Detroit.

23 Our attrition numbers are as follows. For
24 the month of February we lost four sworn, ten
25 civilians, three police assistants for a total of 17.

1 Leave of absence numbers for sworn we have 63 on
2 continuous FMLA, for civilians we have 46 and for FMLA
3 intermittent we have 87 sworn and 89 civilians. We
4 have 121 restricted sworn officers. Our suspension
5 report we have 9 officers total suspended. Again, for
6 separation we only lost four officers in the month of
7 February. We have 561 police officers that are in the
8 Drop Program.

9 Our numbers went up a little for civilian.
10 The reason for that is because we added twelve new
11 positions. We have 10 virtual patrol operator
12 positions that were added and then we had two medical
13 case management positions that were added. So we're
14 still doing pretty good with our civilian vacancies.
15 Additionally, I've provided, it's on the legal side, on
16 paper so that -- I know that Commissioner Bell has been
17 asking for this -- it gives a break down of the list of
18 the separated officers by year and it also states the
19 agencies that they went to. So I gave you that from
20 2015 to 2019.

21 I hope to have for you soon the number of
22 officers that left within the five-year period. That's
23 not identified in those numbers. And that completes my
24 report.

25 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Through the Chair.

1 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Griffie.

2 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Thank you for your
3 report. At the last community meeting you gave a great
4 report on recruiting efforts, which I think you and
5 Chief and everybody who has worked on that has received
6 accolades and the Mayor discussed it at his State of
7 the City address. It would be nice to see how well
8 that program is doing. And so the numbers that we
9 usually see are from July. And so I'm just wondering
10 if there's maybe an addendum to this report for the
11 next few months so that we can see that just tells us
12 how many applicants we've received since the launch of
13 that program. Any of them can identify that as being
14 the source of their recruitment and how many of them
15 have been successful, the cadet program. Those new
16 initiatives would be really nice to see because it's
17 important for us to understand if it's working so that
18 potentially when we're talking about budget for next
19 year or things we need to do to improve recruiting we
20 can look at that and say do we want to continue the
21 program or discontinue if it's not working.

22 DR. ANDERSON: Through the Chair, we
23 originally started seeing media campaign up of about
24 32%. It's dwindled some to approximately 22% increase
25 in applicants. We have not processed any of those

1 applicants entirely through our 12 step program to make
2 it to the Police Academy but we are working on that.
3 As far as our Police Cadet Program it is a work in
4 progress. We are working out some kinks for that
5 program. We initially thought that we would be able to
6 bring applicants in who totally failed the agility
7 test.

8 What we learned is that we need them to meet
9 us halfway and that means that we want the threshold to
10 be at least 50% towards passing. Because if you bring
11 them in, back when I took it it was called the maloxa
12 (ph). When I took it it was strenuous and if I would
13 have come in at ground zero I would have been no
14 benefit to the Police Academy or my Department. So we
15 want them to meet us 50% there. If they're halfway
16 there we want to be able to take them into the program
17 and take them the rest of the way. So that's the
18 change that we just recently made. We have
19 approximately, I think, 17 people in the Cadet Program
20 one on Workmans' Comp and two on medical hold. So
21 that's another reason why we made the change to 40 to
22 50 percent there.

23 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: Madame Chairperson.

24 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Holly.

25 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: Thank you for your

1 report. I always -- this new format you give, I'm very
2 grateful for that. I'm kind of relatively new. Help
3 me with this. It may be a conflict. It's not
4 critical. It's just an observation. If I like -- like
5 I recommended someone who had a doctorate degree in
6 forensics and five or six other people, am I allowed to
7 do that as a Board Member -- as a Commissioner or is
8 that something I'm not allowed to do? And if I am
9 allowed is there some responsibility that perhaps the
10 office have to me or someone else that what's going on
11 with that, what happened to that? Obviously it's not
12 my job to try to usurp anything but just need to know
13 what's going on. Like the two police officers -- two
14 cadets? In other words, I'd like to know if I'm making
15 a contribution, you know, every week. And so I just
16 want to know. It's just an observation. And I just
17 want to know if I'm doing something wrong. So just
18 help me with that.

19 DR. ANDERSON: Through the Chair, you're
20 absolutely making a contribution any time you recommend
21 someone. We have to do our due diligence and we have
22 to make sure that they meet the requirements-

23 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: Well, sure.

24 DR. ANDERSON: -so that we will have an off
25 line conversation with you so as not to disclose

1 anyone's information. But Lieutenant Coles has been
2 working diligently to process the candidates that you
3 recommended and we have ran into some challenges.

4 As far as recommending people I would ask
5 that everyone here recommend people to go to the
6 Detroit website and apply for jobs. And if you work
7 for the City let them know to list you as someone that
8 they know that works for the City. But what we
9 typically do is we try to take the most qualified
10 candidate and we send them through the scoring process.
11 So it's absolutely okay to recommend people to go to
12 the website to apply. Because typically if I get
13 resumes, those resumes are not going to be in the
14 system. We need them to be in the system so that the
15 consultants can do the scoring and reviewing of
16 applications.

17 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: So if it's like five
18 months ago I recommend something it takes that long?
19 The other thing, for example, I offer you my
20 billboards. You have one downtown on the Lodge. I
21 don't know. Are you paying for it because it's one of
22 my billboards and I was gonna give it to you. So I'm
23 asking you -- in other words, I'm saying, a Doctor, and
24 again, it's not to be critical. It's just -- in other
25 words, if I'm not good at making a contribution then I

1 just need, you know, because it's just the kind of guy
2 I am.

3 DR. ANDERSON: Through the Chair, we were
4 very excited when you offered the billboards. Someone
5 from the Mayor's office sent you an email. They copied
6 me on the email and they also, I believe, called your
7 office to discuss that.

8 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: There was no follow up
9 with that. I don't want to get into that. I just want
10 to make sure -- again, I just want to serve notice that
11 I really want to make a difference and I just feel like
12 that I'm ignored. But I'm not saying -- I'm just using
13 that word. I need a better word than that. I
14 apologize to you. It's not to be critical.

15 DR. ANDERSON: I don't take it like that at
16 all. It's just that I don't handle the billboard. So
17 what I did was I took your information, your phone
18 number as well as your email address and I forwarded
19 it-

20 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: And the commercial?
21 Remember the commercial I wanted?

22 DR. ANDERSON: I told them everything that
23 you wanted to do. So the Mayor's staff, they're very,
24 very respondent, and I even followed up and said-

25 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: I'm meeting with the

1 Mayor on Monday and I'll just have a come to Jesus
2 meeting with him.

3 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Dr. Anderson, can you cc
4 one of the staff members or myself on the email so that
5 we can follow up as well.

6 DR. ANDERSON: I cc'd Robert Brown on the
7 last one.

8 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you.

9 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Through the Chair.

10 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Holt.

11 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Thank you so much for
12 your report, especially where you make it quite
13 transparent why it is a number of the officers hired by
14 the City of Detroit leave the Detroit Police
15 Department. I'm sure we're all aware of the Mayor's
16 State of the Budget address that was made last week and
17 whereby one of the council members expressed a
18 discontent with the cadet academy program. My
19 question, who made the decision to have this program
20 and Council didn't seem to have a bid in on it?

21 DR. ANDERSON: Through the Chair, I am going
22 to try to be as diplomatically correct as I possibly
23 can. I prefer to answer that question off line.

24 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Off line. Okay. We're
25 good. I believe in not airing our dirty laundry.

1 We're good. Okay. Secondly, Commissioner Brown and I
2 were at the 8th Precinct with the Coffee With The Cops
3 and Commander Patterson showcased his cadets.
4 Apparently they are quite aware of what -- why it is
5 they were accepted in this program. On that note,
6 Commissioner Brown and I let the young cadets know that
7 you are being scrutinized under a Petri dish sort of.
8 So we do expect you to set a model and to do quite well
9 in that program. So thank you. We'll talk off line.

10 DR. ANDERSON: And, through the Chair, I
11 wanted -- when I mean off line I mean with all the
12 Board so that everyone would be aware. I did answer
13 some questions about questions that the City Council
14 did have.

15 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Okay.

16 DR. ANDERSON: And I tried to inform them as
17 much as I could. I learned that they didn't have all
18 of the information but we were building a program as we
19 went along. So I tried to send them as much as I
20 could.

21 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Let me do a plug, please,
22 through the Chair. We need people to complete their
23 census forms. Try to do it before April 26th. Federal
24 funds from that census count support grants for the
25 police. So when we're complaining let's put some of

1 our complaints into action. And we can start out by
2 completing that census form. Only nine questions so it
3 won't take forever. Thank you again.

4 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Bell.

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madame Chair, I just want
6 to thank Dr. Anderson for a great report as always; and
7 especially when you highlight the separation. I'm
8 looking forward to the five-year window. But when you
9 look at this report you see in 2019 Oakland County
10 Sheriff Department, ten former police officers joined
11 Oakland County Sheriff Department. And when you look
12 at 2018 Warren PD picked up twelve officers. That's
13 what we're talking about in terms of losing officers.
14 So you're breaking this down.

15 I think it should be clear that we had
16 extensive meeting with the LSA and leadership and we
17 already know the problem. The problem is the pay and
18 benefits. And if the Council and the Mayor don't weigh
19 in on that, recruiting, we're just balancing the books;
20 pay and benefits. I want to say it over and over every
21 opportunity I get. Let's not duck the issue about,
22 Commissioner Holt, about the cadet program.
23 Commissioner -- I mean Council Ayers raised that
24 concern and maybe perhaps addressed it, but the Mayor
25 and the Chief made that decision. It's no secret.

1 They know that. They know where to get the answer for
2 why -- they're trying to do whatever they can to try to
3 bring these young people and maybe we can have some
4 dialogue with Council Ayers. They're just trying to do
5 what they can to bring these people up to speed to pass
6 the test. Simple as that. There's no hidden agenda
7 there -- versus being critical they should weigh in on
8 it.

9 If the Council want to do something then they
10 should weigh in on the budget to give these officers a
11 better pay. I know we're kicking in July but it's not
12 enough. We need to be competitive with these
13 departments here. If we're not competitive we're going
14 to continue to lose people. Thank you, Madame Chair.

15 DR. ANDERSON: Through the Chair, I want to
16 add to what Commissioner Bell has stated. I was at the
17 table when the decision was made to start the cadet
18 program and it was generated from the concern of our
19 attrition. I live in the city. Our attrition rate
20 fluctuates from 17 to 20 members per month. And if we
21 continue to lose officers at that rate without
22 replacing them we all can fill in the blanks. It was
23 generated out of safety for the city.

24 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you. At this time
25 we'll have our Downtown Services Report Commander Hayes

1 and Captain Johnson.

2 COMMANDER HAYES: Good evening, Honorable
3 Board, members of the community and colleagues. I am
4 Franklin Hayes, Commander with the Detroit Police
5 Department and I am very grateful for the privilege to
6 serve as Commander for both the 3rd Precinct and
7 Downtown Services.

8 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: It seems like we just
9 saw you.

10 COMMANDER HAYES: You did. Back in November.
11 I had the opportunity with a partner who is still here,
12 the 3rd Precinct Downtown Services, my scout car
13 partner from the 3rd Precinct Rodney Cox is here to
14 support us today and today you will hear from our scout
15 car partner from Downtown Services to talk about some
16 of the great work that's being done.

17 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you. It's always
18 a pleasure to see you.

19 COMMANDER HAYES: So Downtown Services is
20 very unique. It has a composition of roughly 20
21 percent residential and another 80 percent that's both
22 from employers, large and small corporations and
23 businesses, as well as stadiums and entertainment
24 venues. To help keep those that we serve safe and
25 informed we work hard with our partners we highlight on

1 today to help with that initiative Mr. Paul Kado;
2 again, to help that safe environment that we work
3 everyday day in and day out very hard to foster.

4 We'll give you a snapshot today of these
5 partnerships and how they work, and also those who have
6 frequently leaned on the Detroit Police Department how
7 they have paid their fair share back to the taxpayers
8 for the police services that they receive. I'd like to
9 now present to you my scout car partner from Downtown
10 Services Captain Javaun Johnson (ph).

11 CAPTAIN JOHNSON: Good evening, Madame Chair,
12 Commissioners. I want to go over Downtown Services
13 Detroit Police Department, which as Commander said, is
14 under the chief neighborhood liaison office directed by
15 Deputy Chief Bettison and then Downtown Services Report
16 Director Commander Hayes and myself. I report to
17 Commander Hayes.

18 Downtown Services completes its commitment to
19 the City by policing through partnerships. One of our
20 largest partnerships is the Downtown Detroit
21 Partnership. What they do is advance Detroit by
22 driving engagements, developments, and programs that
23 benefit businesses, residents and visitors throughout
24 downtown urban core. We work with them a lot on
25 planning, security and parks. They are a significant

1 partner.

2 Another way that DPD helps us is they help
3 put on our Community Crime Stat. Our Community Crime
4 Stat is held every forth Monday of the month at the
5 Detroit Police Public Safety Headquarters. Our next
6 meeting is on March 23, 2020 when we go over the crime
7 status with the residents, businesses and the visitors.

8 Another one of our important partnerships is
9 what is called the BIZ, Business Improvement Zone. The
10 Downtown Detroit Business Improvement Zone was created
11 to keep downtown Detroit clean, safe and beautiful.
12 The BIZ offers cleaning, safety, hospitality. They
13 hold a holiday lighting party and they do the
14 landscaping services for downtown Detroit. One of the
15 biggest ways that they help us as a police department
16 is they sponsor the Ambassadors. I know anybody whose
17 been downtown has seen the Ambassadors. They wear the
18 bright yellow vests. They're very friendly, well
19 trained. They keep downtown Detroit clean. When you
20 have a clean environment you want to act right. We
21 depend on that. So every chance we get we thank the
22 Ambassadors for the hard work that they do. Another
23 thing they do is remove graffiti. When you have those
24 type of partners doing what they do everyday that makes
25 it easier for us because downtown looks very

1 presentable and then you have the police that can
2 discourage people from acting otherwise.

3 Just a small list of our other partners that
4 make everything happen, help us make everything happen;
5 Bedrock Properties, St. Pete Paul Jesuit, Project Green
6 Light, Neighborhood Services Organization, Detroit
7 Wayne Integrated Health Network, Northeast Integrated
8 Health, which is formally Northeast Guidance Center,
9 DTE, Greektown Casino and the Greektown Neighborhood
10 Partnership.

11 One of the specific things that I'd like to
12 point out or highlight for the Commission is our
13 Traffic Management Center. We have -- Downtown
14 Services works closely with the City of Detroit Traffic
15 Management coordinating construction that effects
16 traffic, consulting with the City as well as State
17 traffic planners for the future blueprint of downtown
18 Detroit.

19 Downtown Services operates a Traffic
20 Management Center located in the Real Time Crime
21 Center. One of the advantages to that is that we're
22 able to use -- there's a synergy between the traffic as
23 well as the crime -- the monitoring the crime. From
24 the Traffic Management Center we get live updates for
25 many of the major thoroughfares for the City. This is

1 specifically useful during rush hour. For example --
2 specifically useful so we have real live traffic
3 updates so we're able to make adjustments on the fly.
4 They also have a Twitter account which they update
5 often and they can be reached at Detroit_tmc or
6 https://twitter.com/detroit_tmc.

7 Another thing that Traffic Management does
8 with us is they provide a daily report. What I do with
9 the daily reports is the next day or that night I go
10 over them and I see where we can improve our services
11 in the downtown area as well as either traffic
12 management or managing sports venues.

13 Sports venues is one of our primary
14 objectives that we handle. We ensure the safety and
15 security of the sports venues interior and exterior of
16 policing and securing major events. So for 2019 little
17 Caesars Arena reimbursed the Detroit Police Department
18 \$969,572 for police services. This is what they pay us
19 to help us keep downtown. Comerica Park paid \$183,542
20 and Ford Field paid \$398,971 for a total reimbursement
21 to the City of Detroit for police services a little
22 over 5.1 million dollars.

23 The last thing that I'd like to highlight for
24 Downtown Services is our Homeless Initiative. This
25 year or last year we started our Homeless and Mentally

1 Ill initiative along with the guardianship program.
2 We've renewed our commitment to the homeless, narcotic
3 addicted and mentally ill. We've committed to ending
4 the revolving door. Too many times we have what we
5 call, unfortunately, we have high utilizers. There are
6 certain people that due to their mental state, due to
7 their narcotic addiction or due to them being homeless
8 end up using a disproportionate amount of police
9 services; not only police services but EMS as well.

10 So what we've done is, myself and my team, we
11 have committed to getting the people the services they
12 need so that we can get them where they need to be as
13 opposed to answering police runs three and four times a
14 day for the same six or seven people. In doing that we
15 instituted a new scout car which is completely
16 dedicated for the initiative.

17 Additionally, we are partnering with the 36th
18 District Court for what we hope to be the start of
19 their new Specialty Court, which deals specifically
20 with mental illness as well as narcotic addiction. So
21 what we're going to be able to do is that in the event
22 that some of these high utilizers are unable to accept
23 services, what we will do is we will be able to get
24 them to a judge in the event they commit a crime who is
25 trained and empathetic with their needs. And when we

1 will be able to service them better as well as
2 partnership furthermore with the Wayne County Jail so
3 that when they get there they will know they need the
4 services and hopefully we can get them what they need.

5 Lastly, I'd like to thank also the Traffic
6 Contingent lead by Lieutenant Lewis on afternoons as
7 well as our Bravo Unit, which does a fantastic job of
8 securing all of downtown, but specifically, the club
9 areas, so I'd like to thank them as well. Any
10 questions?

11 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you, Captain
12 Johnson. Commissioner Davis.

13 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes, I have a couple
14 questions. Are ya'll anticipating a decrease in
15 payback or revenues from the stadiums and the arenas
16 since its been recommended that they keep the crowds
17 down to less than fifty in most places so that would be
18 less reimbursement? Do ya'll anticipate that?

19 CAPTAIN JOHNSON: There will be less
20 reimbursement but then that will be less police work as
21 well.

22 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Second question. I know
23 a couple Fridays ago there was a protest in the Coleman
24 **A. Young Alexander Municipal Building on Friday. I was**
25 **wondering was there any tickets issued to those**

1 particular people and also was any tickets issued later
2 as relates to that?

3 CAPTAIN JOHNSON: There was one ticket
4 issued. But we pride ourselves on how we are able to
5 handle the protest. There was no use of force and no
6 one was arrested in any of the protests that we had so
7 we pride ourselves on that.

8 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Was there a ticket
9 issued that day or later?

10 CAPTAIN JOHNSON: There was one on the first
11 protest. I don't have the exact date.

12 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Bell.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madame Chair, I just want
14 to thank the Captain and the Commander. I'm just
15 really impressed by this homeless mentally ill
16 initiative. I think that is crucial to interact with
17 them and try to help them, because as we all know in
18 the Christian family, the poor and homeless will always
19 be with us. And how we treat them downtown is crucial
20 in the City of Detroit. I just want to commend you
21 that is a great initiative to try to help people
22 perhaps on the gray line that can't help themselves and
23 we try and respond. I just want to commend you on
24 that. All the kudos in terms of that's a great
25 initiative.

1 CAPTAIN JOHNSON: Thank you.

2 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Holly.

3 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: Thank you so much for
4 the report. I live downtown and you guys do a great
5 job. I just got personal stuff. One is that Fort
6 Street look like craters from the one downtown going
7 east. I know all the properties you have there it
8 didn't say nothing about somebody can help you. And
9 DDOT is in the area to help you with those. If I was
10 going to rob a bank or something and I know where the
11 craters are you couldn't get me. I know there's a lot
12 of craters there.

13 Secondly, I don't know if you can do anything
14 about it, but when you have these races, you call them,
15 running, I can't go to church. I can't get out. I
16 show my badge. I say man this ain't working here. I
17 said do you know who I am. I mean, I gotta go back and
18 have church at home because I can't get back there.

19 Let me say this to you. You're going to be
20 happy about this. Sixty days from now we're opening up
21 a mental health -- 24-hour mental health clinic urgent
22 care where you guys can come and drop the mental health
23 off. And you don't have to stay there. Normally all
24 your time is spent because you got to stay at the
25 hospital. We got this worked out. You're going to

1 like this. In about sixty days you're going to really
2 -- they're going to give me a Resolution. Mr. Kado,
3 you ain't gonna have nothing on me.

4 CAPTAIN JOHNSON: Through the Chair, first
5 Commissioner Holly, we will certainly leverage the
6 relationships we have and partnerships with DPW to see
7 if we can get some of those craters addressed on Fort
8 Street. Some of the lessons learned from these events
9 that the event organizers have the due diligence.
10 Certainly when they come in these places and bring
11 these events they have due diligence to talk to those
12 whose daily routines they might interrupt. We found
13 the case that that had not always been done.

14 So for this 2020 year we are really driving
15 down and will be checking ourselves to make sure that
16 the lives of those who they bring this to in their
17 neighborhood-

18 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: Let them know I'm
19 somebody.

20 CAPTAIN JOHNSON: And lastly, it sounds like
21 thank you for bringing the resources to us and add that
22 additional tool on the tool belt and where we highlight
23 partners next year.

24 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioners, any other
25 questions?

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madame Chair, I just have
2 one more comment. About a year ago we received some
3 criticism in terms of the Board of Police
4 Commissioners. Sometimes they only see our impact on
5 the Department in terms of discipline. I think that we
6 should make a note; when I mention about the homeless
7 -- I think sometime at the end of the year we need to
8 lift up positive programs by DPD from a Board of Police
9 Commissioners perspective. I know you get all the
10 kudos from life saving and all that, but we want to do
11 what we think is community service.

12 So I'm hoping that the Chair would direct --
13 I know -- Ms. White to try to come up with some type of
14 concept. I want you to keep that in mind that type of
15 recommendation I think you need to lift up some great
16 initiative that we hear about. We hear them every
17 month almost, but the end of the year I think we really
18 need to show our appreciation a little bit more of what
19 we do with the community people, but we need to do it
20 with DPD. And I just want to take that opportunity.
21 That's my proposal and we can work up a more positive
22 in terms of end of the year in terms of how we want to
23 approach that. Madame Chair, thank you.

24 CAPTAIN JOHNSON: Through the Chair, if I may
25 just respond, we would certainly welcome that. And our

1 first recommendation to that program would be Sergeant
2 Steven Shank (ph). Sergeant Shank has lead blueprint
3 for many of our mental health initiatives as he's been
4 driving this. One of the things that he's really
5 making this drug court thing stick and this mental
6 health piece is he's going after the guardians. The
7 guardians are being paid by, whether they're endowments
8 or the State, and they're supposed to watch these
9 individuals. But they're down here being consumers and
10 the guardians are just holding on to a check and not
11 even sending the resources where they're needed. So
12 we've been able to call the guardians into the court
13 and go before the judge and really hold them
14 accountable. So certainly Sergeant Shank's work is
15 well recognized and what's being done here will be
16 replicated throughout the city very shortly. So
17 Sergeant Shank, job well done.

18 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Any other questions,
19 Commissioners?

20 (None responded.)

21 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: I just have one question
22 regarding the reimbursements. Are we up to date?

23 CAPTAIN JOHNSON: Yes, ma'am, we are.

24 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Because at one time
25 there was an issue.

1 CAPTAIN JOHNSON: Yes, ma'am.

2 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: So now we're all up to
3 date? Everyone's paid up?

4 CAPTAIN JOHNSON: Yes, ma'am.

5 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you for your
6 report and thank you for everything that you're doing.
7 Thank you for your leadership. At this time we will
8 have the report from the Interim Board Secretary Ms.
9 White.

10 MS. WHITE: Thank you, Madame Chairperson.
11 Honorable Board, please refer to Section 7 of your
12 weekly packet that includes all of the incoming
13 correspondence for this week. None of the items
14 require the Board's action at this time, but they are
15 included for your review and consideration. The items
16 are as follows: DPD Facial Recognition Report Number
17 19, the Detroit Health Department COVID 19 Resource 2
18 Kit Flyer, an email from a citizen regarding DPD
19 Sanctioned Drifting Event Sunday, this past Sunday at
20 Warren and Grand River and confidential and sensitive
21 detailed report from Deputy Chief Todd Bettison, is
22 some of what you've heard during the Human Resources
23 presentation this evening.

24 Number 5, a letter from Chief of Police Craig
25 regarding Detroit Police Basic Recruit Class,

1 graduation, communication from U.S. -- excuse me Global
2 Ties Detroit regarding a meeting request. And last,
3 communication was from Chief of Police Craig regarding
4 a command investigation. And that concludes my report
5 at this time.

6 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you, ma'am. We'll
7 move on to unfinished-

8 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Through the Chair, is
9 this an appropriate time to reference the Drifting
10 Event? There's nothing that we are going to do to
11 resolve the situation as it relates to the citizen's
12 complaint?

13 MS. WHITE: We are looking into -- through
14 the Chair, we are looking into the various concerns but
15 it doesn't require any action from you tonight, but we
16 are looking into that citizen's concern.

17 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: It just came in.

18 MS. WHITE: It just came in this week. This
19 is just a report of incoming correspondence. We'll
20 look into it.

21 COMMISSIONER HOLT: Thank you.

22 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: Madame Chairperson.

23 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Yes.

24 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: I know you're tired of
25 me. The Drifting is the donut? Is that the same

1 thing?

2 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: The tires.

3 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: I saw something on video
4 and the Chief was there and somebody got hurt. My
5 concern is -- at least what I saw on the video. Let me
6 ask you this, Madame Chairperson, are we making sure we
7 got the right insurance for whatever we do with this
8 event; that we would have the right insurance liability
9 and so forth so that we can protect the City?

10 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: The Commander looks like
11 he's going to answer.

12 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: That's a good question.

13 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Yeah.

14 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Through the Chair, the
15 events involving the vehicle exhibitions, they are
16 being conducted on private property. The City has no
17 liability in that and there are no taxpayer dollars
18 effected by those private shows.

19 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: So was there another
20 show where somebody actually got hurt?

21 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That was the private-

22 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: That was the private
23 incident?

24 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes, it was.

25 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Okay.

1 COMMISSIONER HOLLY: But, you know, when
2 we're there and we recognize -- if I recognize you
3 there I'm assuming -- not you -- I'm assuming that a
4 police officer is there, whether you're out of uniform,
5 I'm feeling like it is sanctioned by us. I hear you
6 now. My concern is do they have insurance? I just
7 think that -- anyway. Okay. I trust you. I trust my
8 Chairman and when she looks at me like this I'm
9 supposed to shut up.

10 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: The only thing I was
11 going to say is that I think that the chief would do --
12 would not do anything that would put the City of
13 Detroit in harm's way. Thank you, Ms. White. Under
14 Unfinished Business, any Unfinished Business?

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madame Chair, I just want
16 to acknowledge the 9th Precinct Pancake Breakfast at
17 the 9th Precinct that was held last Friday and
18 Commissioner Brooks and I attended among others. In
19 terms of the community it was well attended; not just
20 in terms of the pancakes and fellowship. They gave a
21 historic piece on it and they also had a workshop. It
22 was very meaningful and very helpful to outline some of
23 the concerns of the community in the 9th Precinct.

24 We were thinking about Pershing High School.
25 They recognized some Pershing Young people and the

1 Brotherhood Program that helped young people in that
2 precinct, and Captain Cox knows what I'm talking about.
3 But I think those type programs -- I don't think we can
4 do a high school any time soon, but we can have that
5 dialogue. You know, basically, it was well attended.
6 And I think, once again, community trust, the Precinct
7 Commander and Captain initiating that type of
8 interaction with the entire community 9th Precinct and
9 also those that was invited, especially young people,
10 that was lifted up at that particular forum. Thank
11 you, Madame Chair. I just wanted to share that.

12 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you, Commissioner
13 Bell. Also, I want to remind Commissioners that we
14 have three draft postings that everyone was supposed to
15 look at and make recommendations to -- Ms. White.

16 MS. WHITE: Yes, through the Chair. To the
17 Chief Investigator position, which was transmitted
18 again to you yesterday, if I can have those and send
19 those to Dr. Anderson for her processing.

20 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: And we are scheduled to
21 vote on the posting next week.

22 MS. WHITE: Yes, ma'am.

23 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you. New
24 Business, Commissioners.

25 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: Yes.

1 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Davis.

2 COMMISSIONER DAVIS: I think that we should
3 consider suspending our meetings for a couple weeks due
4 to this virus. I think that if you look at the Charter
5 of the City of Detroit under Declarations of Rights
6 Section 1, in this second sentence it states that the
7 City shall provide for the public safety, public peace,
8 health and safety of persons and property within the
9 ingenuous boundaries. We should consider that because
10 we are exposing people and potentially could be making
11 the City liable. And also, if you look at Section
12 7-802 it does not exclude the BOPC.

13 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: We'll have Mr. Wyrick
14 look into that, Commissioner Davis. Thank you for
15 that. Any other New Business, Commissioners?

16 (None responded.)

17 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Announcements. Our next
18 meeting will be Thursday, March 19, 2020 at 3 p.m., if
19 there's no-- if we don't cancel it -- at the Detroit
20 Public Safety Headquarters located at 1301 3rd Street.
21 Our next community meeting will be Thursday, April 9,
22 2020 at 6:30 p.m. in the 11th Precinct at the Pleasant
23 Grove Baptist Church located at 13651 Dequindre. At
24 this time we will have Oral Communications from the
25 audience. Please give your name and limit your

1 comments to two minutes, please.

2 MR. BROWN: Madame Chair, currently I have
3 three-

4 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Hold on, Mr. Brown.

5 COMMANDER JOHNSON: Madame Chair, I'm sorry.
6 I just neglected to give you the boundaries of Downtown
7 Service.

8 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Okay.

9 COMMANDER JOHNSON: It's Trumbull to the
10 west, Temple to the north, 375 to the east and the
11 river to the south. Sorry about that.

12 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: No problem. Thank you,
13 sir. Mr. Brown.

14 MR. BROWN: Madame Chair, I currently have
15 three cards. The first speaker it will be Ms. Faith
16 followed by Mr. Scotty Boman and your last speaker will
17 be Ms. Crystal Bonner.

18 MS. FAITH: Welcome to this honorable Board.
19 Thank you. For the record, my name is Ms. Faith and I
20 enjoy everything that I've heard. I'm just astounded
21 by everything that they did in Downtown Services for
22 the homeless initiative. I would like to support DPD
23 in any way possible for that and whatever a citizen can
24 support you with. Just let me know what I can do,
25 because I was just so knocked over backwards about

1 that. I used to be homeless myself when I first
2 started coming out to the meetings. That's why it's a
3 little thing that I have close to my heart. I see it a
4 lot in the building that I live in. So just let me
5 know whatever that I can do to be assistance with DPD
6 and the Commissioners as well. I'm just open for
7 whatever I can do. I appreciate ya'll all the time.
8 Keep up the good work.

9 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you.

10 MR. BROWN: Mr. Boman.

11 MR. BOMAN: Welcome to my place of work.

12 Please, I'd like to hear your answers to my questions
13 after I get done asking all of them and making my
14 comments, please. One, the Corporal Jones thing; if
15 the arbitrator happens to rule against the Board's
16 decision thereby allowing for a violation of the
17 Charter does the Board intend to sue?

18 Second, the Chief did say that Stingray like
19 technology was used the last time Commissioner Burton
20 asked about it. He said it didn't have that name but
21 it's like that. That kind of technology, by the way,
22 when they used it in Mexico City drug cartels got hold
23 of it and started using it against the people
24 themselves.

25 Third, what is this about public comments

1 being limited? The Bill of Rights does not take a sick
2 day. The Open Meetings Act does not get a sick day.
3 And if we're going to cancel meetings because people
4 get sick then we shouldn't have meetings ever at all.
5 Because people always get sick. 37 people died from
6 Homicide in the City of Detroit in the time period 20
7 people died of the Corona Virus in the entire U.S.A.
8 The reaction is undue. I'm really worried that now
9 we're going to squelch communication -- oh, by the way,
10 my words are virus free. You will not get a virus
11 because I said something -- that we somehow are going
12 to squelch public comments and make it oh you can send
13 us an email. This is public. That's what public
14 means. Public does not mean a private email. And
15 viruses are actually more transmittable by email than
16 by sound anyway; just in case you're wondering.

17 So this is madness. I don't understand it.
18 I think the whole hype -- there is some agenda behind
19 it clearly and that agenda is taking place. If you
20 look at New York City right now they are under a Soviet
21 style system where large gatherings are banned. What
22 ever happened to the right to peaceably assembled? Oh
23 well. And you know, we had -- my time is up.

24 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you.

25 MR. BROWN: Ms. Bonner.

1 MS. BONNER: Good evening. Once again, can
2 we just cut down the amount of time you guys spend on
3 all your little business? I'm sleepy. I came straight
4 from work. It's sort of hard to stay alert. What I
5 want to talk about; what is the Police Department plan
6 for these Neo Nazis if they decide to March again in
7 downtown Detroit during the pride festival or any
8 festival? It should not be allowed at all. They're
9 responsible for millions of people being killed. They
10 should not have the right to March in our city, which
11 is 70 odd something percent black. But even if it
12 wasn't 70 odd some percent black it should not be
13 allowed because not all white people non black are for
14 the Neo Nazis.

15 Another thing, this initiative that you're
16 doing with the homeless, maybe I was half sleeping. I
17 don't know. But it seems like all you're doing is
18 gathering the repeat offenders up and putting them in
19 the Wayne County Jail. That's not really any support.
20 But I do look forward to Reverend Holly's version of
21 helping the homeless. That sounds like that's going to
22 help. But just picking them up and putting them in
23 jail.

24 And, another thing, this virtual patrol?
25 What is that all about? Why don't we have real patrol?

1 Not just in the downtown area or the New Center area or
2 the what's that called? You renamed it. It used to be
3 Cass Corridor -- Midtown; that's what it is. Why don't
4 we have regular patrol in our neighborhoods? If you
5 really want to create better relations with the
6 citizens patrol where the citizens are to help us feel
7 safe; not just downtown. Do I have to move downtown to
8 get some patrolling? It's ridiculous.

9 And, then the money you're getting from these
10 sports centers, why can't that money be used to pay our
11 police officers? I mean, we're losing like 20 to 17
12 per month. Come on, people, let's pay them. There's
13 money out there. And stop using all this money for
14 this little facial recognition and this little,
15 whatever you what did you say it was?

16 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Stingray.

17 MS. CONNER: Stingray. I mean, give me a
18 break.

19 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Thank you, ma'am.

20 COMMISSIONER BURTON: Face Station.

21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Madame Chair.

22 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Bell.

23 COMMISSIONER BELL: Observation that -- I'm
24 in opposition to shutting down our meeting. The
25 ceiling is a hundred people and we are in this crowd

1 we're way under 50. So, as someone stated a couple
2 weeks ago, we are very important to conducting business
3 in reference to what we have to take care of, so I
4 don't think that we are even near that hundred people
5 mark. So I just want to share that.

6 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Madame Chair.

7 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Commissioner Griffie.

8 COMMISSIONER GRIFFIE: Motion for
9 adjournment.

10 COMMISSIONER BELL: Second.

11 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Its been moved and
12 supported that we adjourn. Is there any discussion?

13 (None responded.)

14 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Those in favor?

15 (Several Commissioners responded by
16 indicating aye.)

17 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Those opposed?

18 (None responded.)

19 CHAIRPERSON CARTER: Motion carries. The
20 meeting is adjourned. Thank you all for attending the
21 meeting this evening. Have a great rest of your week.

22 (The proceedings concluded at 8:02 p.m.)

23 --- --- ---

24

25

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

C E R T I F I C A T E

I, Sherrayna Coleman, do hereby certify that I have recorded stenographically the proceedings had and testimony taken in the meeting, at the time and place forth, and I do further certify that the foregoing transcript, consisting of (65) pages, is a true and correct transcript of my said stenographic notes.

March 26, 2020

Sherrayna Coleman

Sherrayna Coleman
CSR-6485

\$

\$183,542 45:19
\$398,971 45:20
\$622,000 28:25
\$969,572 45:18

-

-so 34:24

1

1 58:6
1,130 21:6
10 31:11
10.2% 20:7
10.9 20:14
11 13:10
110 21:2
11th 58:22
12 3:2 5:14,18 33:1
121 30:17 31:4
123 30:16
12th 19:20
13 12:17
1301 58:20
13651 58:23
137 21:3
14.6% 20:18
140 30:10
14th 11:15
16.4% 20:19
17 30:25 33:19 40:20 63:11
19 10:25 53:17 58:18

2

2 53:17
2,189 21:4
2,514 30:7
2,811 30:12
20 8:18 21:4 40:20 41:20 61:6 63:11
2015 31:20
2018 19:13,16 39:12
2019 12:24 19:19 20:11 31:20 39:9 45:16
2020 3:2 5:14,19 6:3,8 11:11 19:23 20:11 30:6 43:6 50:14 58:18,22
203 30:15
213.7 21:5
22% 32:24
22nd 21:1
23 43:6
23.3% 20:18
234 30:11
24 30:18
24-hour 49:21
242 30:13
26 30:10
26th 38:23
28 20:14,16,19 21:11 26:2,6
28-day 20:12
29.2% 20:17

3

3 9:9 58:18
3,139 30:8
30 12:16

313-596-1830 11:25
32% 32:24
33 15:22
344 30:21
36th 46:17
37 61:5
375 59:10
379 21:2
3rd 19:15 41:6,12,13 58:20

4

4 3:22
4,010 30:10
4,882 21:3
40 15:22 33:21
408 21:3
46 30:17 31:2

5

5 6:3,7,23 17:15 53:24
5.1 45:22
50 33:22 64:1
50% 33:10,15
557 30:12
561 31:7
567 30:20
59.2 21:6
596-1800 25:13
596-2499 12:1
5th 28:21

6

6 6:24 21:7
625 30:7

63 31:1**6:29** 3:3**6:30** 9:10 58:22

7

7 4:2 9:11 53:11**7-802** 58:12**70** 62:11,12

8

8 9:12**80** 41:21**86** 30:17**87** 31:3**88** 30:16**89** 31:3**8:02** 64:22**8th** 38:2

9

9 31:5 58:21**9/1/1** 22:4**9th** 20:6 56:16,17,23 57:8

A

above-mentioned 5:10**absence** 31:1**absolutely** 25:6 26:5 34:20
35:11**academy** 30:19 33:2,14 37:18**accept** 10:14 11:23 46:22**accepted** 38:5**accident** 19:17,22**accidental** 10:25 19:24 20:2**accolades** 32:6**accomplish** 13:4**accomplishments** 7:10**account** 45:4**accountability** 10:2**accountable** 52:14**achievement** 15:9**acknowledge** 5:4 16:7 17:16,
19 56:16**acknowledges** 13:24**act** 43:20 61:2**acting** 44:2**action** 25:24 39:1 53:14 54:15**activism** 7:9**add** 40:16 50:21**added** 31:10,12,13**addendum** 32:10**addicted** 46:3**addiction** 46:7,20**additional** 21:25 22:22 50:22**Additionally** 9:23 31:15 46:17**address** 22:5,11 26:10,11 32:7
36:18 37:16**addressed** 29:13,20 39:24
50:7**adherence** 9:22**adjourn** 64:12**adjourned** 64:20**adjournment** 64:9**adjustments** 45:3**adopt** 16:22,25**advance** 42:21**advancement** 13:8**advantages** 44:21**advice** 25:4**advised** 8:20**afternoon** 4:22**afternoons** 47:6**age** 12:17 13:12**agencies** 31:19**agency** 9:19 10:2**agenda** 5:14,18 10:16 40:6
61:18,19**aggravated** 20:8,17**agility** 30:14,17 33:6**airing** 37:25**alert** 62:4**Alexander** 47:24**alleged** 11:9**Allen** 4:10**allowed** 18:18 24:16 34:6,8,9
62:8,13**allowing** 15:21 60:16**alternate** 21:24**Ambassadors** 43:16,17,22**America** 18:2,8 19:1**amount** 46:8 62:2**Anderson** 10:18 30:3,4 32:22
34:19,24 36:3,15,22 37:3,6,21
38:10,16 39:6 40:15 57:19**Andre** 12:18**Angeles** 23:23**Annie** 3:23**announce** 11:5**announcement** 11:18**Announcements** 58:17**answering** 22:4 46:13**answers** 60:12**anticipate** 47:18**anticipating** 47:14

anyone's 35:1
apologize 36:14
Apparently 38:4
appeared 30:16,17
applicants 30:10 32:12,25
 33:1,6
applications 35:16
apply 35:6,12
appreciation 18:3 51:18
approach 51:23
approval 6:3 29:2
approve 5:18 6:7
approximately 32:24 33:19
April 38:23 58:21
arbitrator 60:15
area 22:6 45:11 49:9 63:1
areas 21:9 22:20 47:9
Arena 45:17
arenas 47:15
arraigned 24:14
arrested 21:2 48:6
arrests 21:2 22:5
Article 9:11
assaults 20:8,17
assembled 61:22
assigned 19:15,24
assistance 13:4,7 25:4,7,8
 60:5
Assistant 21:20
assistants 30:25
assuming 24:5 56:3
astounded 59:20
Atoum 19:18
attendance 3:10
attended 56:18,19 57:5

attending 64:20
attrition 30:23 40:19
audience 11:22 14:9 58:25
audio 4:11
avoid 8:18 23:9
award 15:6,17
awarded 10:11
awardees 10:13
awards 15:19
aware 37:15 38:4,12
aye 5:23 6:12 17:5 64:16
Ayers 39:23 40:4

B

back 7:17,19 19:13 26:17,20
 28:17 33:11 41:10 42:7 49:17,
 18
backwards 59:25
bad 12:21
badge 49:16
Baker 23:21
balancing 39:19
bank 49:10
banned 61:21
Baptist 18:14 58:23
based 20:15
Basic 53:25
basically 57:5
beat 22:3
beautiful 43:11
Becum 19:23
Bedrock 44:5
beginning 3:21 21:1
behalf 3:9 7:25 8:23 14:20
believes 10:1

Bell 3:22 7:21 31:16 39:4,5
 40:16 48:12,13 51:1 56:15
 57:13 63:21,22,23 64:10
belt 50:22
benefit 33:14 42:23
benefits 39:18,20
Bettison 42:15 53:21
bid 37:20
big 20:20
biggest 43:15
Bill 61:1
billboard 36:16
billboards 35:20,22 36:4
Bisi 19:18
bit 51:18
BIZ 43:9,12
black 7:9 62:11,12,13
blanks 40:22
blown 23:19
blueprint 44:17 52:2
Board 3:6,9 4:7,14 8:23 9:2,3,
 6,12,15,19,23 10:1,8,17 11:2,
 22 13:22 14:4 17:21 18:4,15
 25:5 29:1,3 30:4 34:7 38:12
 41:3 51:3,8 53:8,11 59:18
 60:17
Board's 8:24 11:25 53:14
 60:15
Boman 59:16 60:10,11
Bonner 59:17 61:25 62:1
booklet 8:7
books 39:19
BOPC 4:16 58:12
boundaries 58:9 59:6
Boy 18:2,7,23,24 19:1,2
Brandon 10:11 17:11,25 18:3

Bravo 47:7
break 31:17 63:18
Breakfast 56:16
breaking 39:14
bright 43:18
bring 16:13 17:24 33:6,10
 40:3,5 50:10,16
bringing 26:23 50:21
broad 9:19
Brooks 3:13 56:18
brother 14:9
Brotherhood 57:1
brought 13:1
Brown 3:14 37:6 38:1,6 59:2,
 4,13,14 60:10 61:25
browse 8:7
Brush 15:23
Bryant 4:20,21,22,24 19:9,10
 24:9 25:6,25 26:16 27:9,25
 28:7,11,16
Bryce 10:11 17:11,25 18:3,13
 19:8
budget 32:18 37:16 40:10
building 22:22 38:18 47:24
 60:4
buildings 22:23
bump 23:8
Burch 3:13
Burton 5:5 6:18,19,22 7:3
 17:11,14 28:2,3,9,13,18 29:8,
 16 60:19 63:16,20
business 12:16 13:15,19
 14:13 15:21 43:9,10 56:14
 57:24 58:15 62:3 64:2
businesses 12:25 13:3,6,10
 16:3 41:23 42:23 43:7
buying 24:21

C

cable 3:11
cadet 18:24 32:15 33:3,19
 37:18 39:22 40:17
cadets 34:14 38:3,6
Caesars 45:17
California 27:7
call 46:5 49:14 52:12
called 26:13 28:14,24 33:11
 36:6 43:9 63:2
calls 23:4
campaign 32:23
campus 7:5,24,25 8:1,2,5
cancel 58:19 61:3
candidate 35:10
candidates 35:2
Captain 10:20 15:18 41:1
 42:10,11 47:11,19 48:3,10,14
 49:1 50:4,20 51:24 52:23
 53:1,4 57:2,7
car 41:12,15 42:9 46:15
cards 59:15
care 19:14 49:22 64:3
carjacking 26:8
carjackings 20:9 25:21,23
 26:5
carries 6:1,15 17:8 64:19
cartels 60:22
Carter 3:5,7,19 4:5,18 5:2,12,
 17,21,24 6:1,6,10,13,15,16,25
 7:2,19 8:11 14:5,17 15:14
 16:20,24 17:3,6,8 19:7 23:25
 25:17 27:24 28:2 29:12,19
 32:1 33:24 37:3,8,10 39:4
 40:24 41:8,17 47:11 48:12
 49:2 50:24 52:18,21,24 53:2,5
 54:6,17,23 55:2,10,13,19,22,
 25 56:10 57:12,20,23 58:1,13,

17 59:4,8,12 60:9 61:24
 63:19,22 64:7,11,14,17,19
case 21:17 22:11 26:24 27:8
 31:13 50:13 61:16
Casino 44:9
Cass 63:3
CBC 22:12
cc'd 37:6
ceiling 63:25
celebrate 23:18
celebrated 7:8
celebrating 15:22
cell 12:5 28:10
census 11:11,14,16,17 38:23,
 24 39:2
Center 8:20 24:3,16 44:8,13,
 20,21,24 63:1
centers 63:10
ceremony 23:19
Certificate 14:22 18:3
Certificates 10:10,14 17:10
Chair 3:7 4:23 6:25 16:19
 19:11 23:24 25:25 27:9 28:4
 29:7 31:25 32:22 34:19 36:3
 37:9,21 38:10,22 39:5 40:14,
 15 42:11 48:13 50:4 51:1,12,
 23,24 54:8,14 55:14 56:15
 57:11,16 59:2,5,14 63:21 64:6
Chairman 56:8
Chairperson 3:5,19 4:3,5,8,18
 5:2,12,17,21,24 6:1,6,10,13,
 15,16 7:2,19 8:11 14:5,17
 15:14 16:20,24 17:3,6,8 19:7
 23:25 25:17 26:19 27:24 28:2
 29:12,16,19 32:1 33:23,24
 37:3,8,10 39:4 40:24 41:8,17
 47:11 48:12 49:2 50:24 52:18,
 21,24 53:2,5,10 54:6,17,22,23
 55:2,6,10,13,19,22,25 56:10
 57:12,20,23 58:1,13,17 59:4,
 8,12 60:9 61:24 63:19,22

64:7,11,14,17,19
challenges 35:3
chance 23:2 43:21
chancellor 7:25
change 20:13 33:18,21
channel 3:12
Chaplain 3:15,17
Chapter 9:11
character 19:5
Charter 9:11 58:4 60:17
check 52:10
checking 50:15
chief 4:20,21,22,23,25 9:4,17
 11:6 12:1 15:3 19:9,10 21:19,
 20 24:9 25:6,25 26:8,16,21
 27:9,25 28:7,11,16,18 29:13
 30:1 32:5 39:25 42:14,15
 53:21,24 54:3 55:4 56:11
 57:17 60:18
Chief's 10:21 19:9
children 14:9
Christian 48:18
Christmas 9:7
Christopher 19:15
church 49:15,18 58:23
citizen 9:1 11:7 53:18 59:23
citizen's 54:11,16
citizens 9:15,20 10:3 12:2
 13:23 14:2 15:8 19:6 24:18
 25:9 63:6
citizens' 11:23
city 8:20 9:11,20 11:13,18
 12:17,19 13:20,23 14:3,23
 15:1,11,13,20 16:4,6,14
 27:12,15,21 30:21,22 32:7
 35:7,8 37:14 38:13 40:19,23
 42:19 44:14,16,25 45:21
 48:20 52:16 55:9,16 56:12
 58:5,7,11 60:22 61:6,20 62:10

City's 11:17
citywide 10:22
civic 5:7 13:11,19 16:15
civilian 9:13 10:2 30:7,19
 31:9,14
civilians 30:21,25 31:2,3
Clair 22:14
Class 53:25
classes 8:8
clean 22:23 43:11,19,20
cleaning 22:20,25 24:5,6
 43:12
clear 39:15
clinic 49:21
close 60:3
closely 44:14
closing 26:25 27:1
club 47:8
cocaine 21:6
Coffee 38:2
Coleman 4:12 47:23
Coles 35:1
colleagues 41:3
College 7:4,7,17
combat 10:24
Comerica 45:19
command 26:10 54:4
Commander 4:20 10:20 38:3
 40:25 41:2,4,6,10,19 42:13,
 16,17 48:14 55:10 57:7 59:5,9
commend 48:20,23
comment 51:2
comments 11:22 59:1 60:14,
 25 61:12
commercial 36:20,21
Commission 3:8 44:12

Commissioner 3:13,22,23,25
 4:1 5:4,5,15,16,25 6:4,5,18,
 19,22,24 7:2,21 12:13,14
 14:5,6,18 16:19,20,21,23
 17:11,14 23:24,25 24:1,19
 25:16,18,20 26:12,18,19
 27:23 28:2,3,9,13,21 29:7,8,
 12,16 31:16,25 32:1,2 33:23,
 24,25 34:7,23 35:17 36:8,20,
 25 37:9,10,11,24 38:1,6,15,21
 39:4,5,22,23 40:16 47:12,13,
 22 48:8,12,13 49:2,3 50:5,18
 51:1 54:8,21,22,24 55:3,12
 56:1,15,18 57:12,25 58:1,2,14
 60:19 63:16,20,21,22,23 64:6,
 7,8,10
Commissioners 3:6,21 4:14
 5:3,13,22 6:2,11 9:6,12 10:6
 13:22 14:4 17:4,21 18:4,15
 25:18 29:2,3,5 42:12 50:24
 51:4,9 52:19 57:13,24 58:15
 60:6 64:15
commit 46:24
commitment 15:2 42:18 46:2
committed 13:25 46:3,11
communication 12:8 54:1,3
 61:9
Communications 58:24
community 3:6 7:4,7,17 9:10
 10:1 11:21 13:16,17 14:25
 16:14 17:17,23 18:6,11 24:22
 25:2,8 32:3 41:3 43:3 51:11,
 19 56:19,23 57:6,8 58:21
Comp 33:20
comparison 20:10,12
competitive 40:12,13
complaining 38:25
complaint 11:7,8 54:12
complaints 9:16 12:4 39:1
complete 11:12 38:22
completely 46:15
completes 31:23 42:18

completing 39:2
composition 41:20
concept 51:14
concern 8:24 26:10 39:24
 40:18 54:16 55:5 56:6
concerns 12:3 23:14 54:14
 56:23
conclude 12:10
concluded 64:22
concludes 54:4
conduct 9:24 11:9
conducted 55:16
conducting 3:8 4:11 64:2
conference 23:4
confidential 53:20
conflict 34:3
congratulations 7:12 15:4,13
Congress 15:23
CONNER 63:17
consideration 10:7 53:15
consisting 13:10
construction 44:15
consultants 35:15
consulting 44:16
consumers 52:9
contaminating 22:18
contingency 22:2,8 27:5,14,
 21
Contingent 47:6
continue 8:15 16:3 32:20
 40:14,21
continues 11:23
continuing 7:13,16,23 8:6
 27:10
Continuity 21:18
continuous 31:2

contribute 20:20
contribution 34:15,20 35:25
contributions 7:9
control 8:21 9:13
convenience 11:6
conversation 34:25
cooperation 14:25
coordinating 44:15
copied 36:5
Cops 38:2
core 42:24
corner 15:23
Corona 8:13 10:25 11:19,20
 21:14 23:13 61:7
Corporal 60:14
corporations 41:22
correct 37:22
correspondence 11:4 53:13
 54:19
Corridor 13:2,5,10 63:3
cough 22:15,17
coughing 23:10
council 15:11,13,20 18:23
 37:17,20 38:13 39:18,23 40:4,
 9
count 38:24
country 18:23,25
County 7:3,6,17 24:14 27:24
 28:1 39:9,11 47:2 62:19
couple 15:19 18:21 23:14 24:2
 26:12 47:13,23 58:3 64:1
court 4:12 46:18,19 52:5,12
cover 23:10
COVID 53:17
Cox 41:13 57:2
Craig 15:3 53:24 54:3

craters 49:6,11,12 50:7
create 9:21 63:5
created 43:10
crime 20:5 21:10,12 43:3,6
 44:20,23 46:24
crimes 20:7,15
criminal 20:8,16
critical 10:22 22:10 23:1 34:4
 35:24 36:14 40:7
critically 19:11
criticism 51:3
crowd 63:25
crowds 47:16
crucial 48:16,19
Crystal 59:17
current 30:8
Curtis 7:4,7,24,25
cut 62:2

D

daily 16:11 45:8,9 50:12
Damon 10:12 17:12
danced 29:17
Darryl 3:14
date 23:18 48:11 52:22 53:3
Davis 4:1 5:25 25:19,20 26:12,
 18 47:12,13,22 48:8 57:25
 58:1,2,14
day 16:9 17:17 18:1,5 26:6
 42:3 45:9 46:14 48:9 61:2
days 20:14,16,19 21:11 26:2
 49:20 50:1
DDC 24:12,18
DDOT 49:9
deal 26:7
dealing 22:10

deals 46:19
Dean 7:13,16,23
decide 62:6
decision 37:19 39:25 40:17
 60:16
declaration 11:20
Declarations 58:5
declared 8:13
decrease 20:14,16,17,18,19
 21:12 23:2 26:2 47:14
dedicated 13:24 46:16
dedication 15:10
degree 34:5
delighted 7:3
demonstrate 15:1
Denise 8:1
department 9:3,14,22 10:23
 11:19 13:3,18,24 14:21,22
 15:19 16:1 17:22 20:3 21:15,
 16 23:6 24:5 27:4,12 28:5,14,
 19,22,23 29:1,23,24 33:14
 37:15 39:10,11 41:5 42:6,13
 43:15 45:17 51:5 53:17 62:5
Department's 9:16 10:24
departments 40:13
depend 43:21
Deputy 4:21,22,23 9:4 19:9,10
 21:20 24:9 25:6,25 26:8,16,21
 27:9,25 28:7,11,16,18 30:1
 42:15 53:21
Dequindre 58:23
detailed 53:21
details 21:18
Detective 19:23
Detention 24:3,16
Detroit 3:1 9:11,21 10:5 11:14
 12:16 13:3,9,22,23 14:3,21,
 22,23 15:1,6,8,11,13,21 16:1
 17:20,21 18:22,24,25 19:2

24:3,4,16 26:23 27:11,12,20
 28:5,14,18,22,23,25 30:22
 35:6 37:14 41:4 42:6,13,20,21
 43:5,10,11,14,19 44:6,14,18
 45:17,21 48:20 53:17,25 54:2
 56:13 58:5,19 61:6 62:7
Detroit_tmc 45:5
development 7:24 19:5
developments 42:22
device 28:19
devices 12:6 28:10
devotion 14:1
dialogue 40:4 57:5
died 61:5,7
difference 17:17,23 18:1
 36:11
diligence 34:21 50:9,11
diligent 13:24
diligently 35:2
diplomatically 37:22
direct 51:12
directed 42:14
direction 26:4
Director 10:18 42:16
dirty 37:25
discard 23:11
discharge 20:3
discipline 51:5
disclose 34:25
discontent 37:18
discontinue 32:21
discourage 44:2
discriminatory 9:24
discuss 36:7
discussed 32:6
discussion 5:19 6:8 17:1

64:12
Disease 8:21
dish 38:7
disingenuous 29:17
disproportionate 46:8
disqualified 30:12
distinct 14:7
distinguished 17:24
district 3:22 4:1 6:23,24 7:1,4,
 7 17:15 28:21 46:18
diverse 26:23
Doctor 35:23
doctorate 34:5
dollars 45:22 55:17
donate 25:13
donations 14:14 24:22 25:12
donut 54:25
door 46:4
downtown 6:17,19,23 7:4,24
 10:19 12:16,20,24 13:1,9,17
 14:2 15:23 16:5 35:20 40:25
 41:7,12,15,19 42:9,12,15,18,
 20,24 43:10,11,14,17,19,25
 44:13,17,19 45:11,19,24 47:8
 48:19 49:4,6 59:6,21 62:7
 63:1,7
DPD 43:2 51:8,20 53:16,18
 59:22 60:5
DPDS 7:8
DPW 50:6
draft 57:14
Drifting 53:19 54:9,25
driving 21:10 42:22 50:14
 52:4
drop 31:8 49:22
drug 52:5 60:22
DTE 44:9

duck 39:21
due 11:20 13:2 34:21 46:6,7
 50:9,11 58:3
Dunmar 10:11 17:12
dwindled 32:24

E

earlier 19:22
easier 43:25
east 49:7 59:10
education 7:13,16,23 8:6
effected 55:18
effective 12:8
effects 44:15
effort 20:21 26:22 27:1
efforts 10:24 24:6 32:4
Elaine 4:20,21,24
elbow 23:8
elected 5:7
electronic 12:6 28:10,19
eliminate 9:23
eliminating 22:25
Elizabeth 3:13
email 11:13,24 12:3 36:5,6,18
 37:4 53:18 61:13,14,15
emailed 10:8
emergencies 22:4
emergency 21:17 22:12
empathetic 46:25
emphasizing 8:15
employees 22:21 24:17 30:8
employers 41:22
empowered 9:12
EMS 46:9
encouraged 12:2

end 22:17 23:20 46:8 51:7,17,
 22
ending 46:3
endowments 52:7
enforce 9:22
enforcement 19:21 20:22 21:1
 26:5
enforcements 21:8
engagements 42:22
enjoy 59:20
ensure 45:14
entertainment 41:23
entire 13:20 57:8 61:7
entity 27:12,13
environment 42:2 43:20
equipment 22:9,20
essential 24:23
establish 9:18
esteem 15:8
ethic 13:12
evening 3:5,23 4:10,12 7:15
 8:2,10,13 18:12 41:2 42:11
 53:23 62:1 64:21
evening's 3:8
event 7:9 21:19 46:21,24 50:9
 53:19 54:10 55:8
events 23:1,15 45:16 50:8,11
 55:15
everyday 42:3 43:24
Everyone's 53:3
Evette 5:4
exact 48:11
examination 30:15
exceptional 15:9
excited 15:18 17:19 36:4
exclude 58:12

excuse 54:1
excused 3:14
exemplary 18:4
exercise 23:17
exhibitions 55:15
expand 12:24
expect 38:8
expecting 15:17
experience 18:19
exposing 58:10
exposure 23:2
express 8:24
expressed 37:17
expression 15:7
extend 6:20
extensive 39:16
exterior 45:15
extraordinary 12:22

F

face 8:18 23:10 28:15 63:20
facets 16:16
facial 53:16 63:14
facilities 21:24
facility 19:14 24:7,13,15
facing 10:23
facts 18:21
failed 33:6
fair 42:7
Faith 59:15,18,19
Falit 19:18
fallen 8:25
falls 26:10
families 8:25

family 12:15 14:8 15:21 17:10
 48:18
fantastic 47:7
father 12:18
favor 5:21 6:10 17:3 64:14
fax 11:24 12:3
February 30:6,15,19,24 31:7
Federal 38:23
feedback 11:23
feel 16:4 36:11 63:6
feeling 56:5
fellowship 56:20
felons 21:2
festival 62:7,8
fever 22:15,17
Field 45:20
fifty 47:17
filing 11:8
fill 40:22
final 24:19
finally 12:7
find 24:21
fine 15:25
firearm 20:3
fiscal 30:9
five-year 31:22 39:8
fluctuates 40:20
fly 45:3
Flyer 53:18
FMLA 31:2
follow 36:8 37:5
food 12:19 14:15
force 9:25 48:5
Ford 45:20

forensics 34:6
forever 39:3
form 39:2
formal 10:16
formally 44:8
format 34:1
forming 13:5
forms 38:23
Fort 49:5 50:7
fortunate 13:18
forum 57:10
forward 6:24,25 7:5,14 17:13
 19:3 39:8 62:20
forwarded 36:18
foster 42:3
found 50:12
Franklin 10:20 41:4
free 61:10
frequently 42:6
Friday 47:24 56:17
Fridays 47:23
friendly 43:18
frivolous 9:21
fulfilling 8:4
full 23:19
function 21:23 24:24
functions 22:10
funds 38:24
future 44:17

G

gathering 62:18
gatherings 61:21
gave 31:19 32:3 56:20

generated 40:18,23
gentlemen 15:25
get all 51:9
girls 18:18
give 5:9 7:14 18:21 25:14 30:5
 34:1 35:22 40:10 42:4 50:2
 58:25 59:6 63:17
giving 16:10 23:6
global 8:14 54:1
gloves 22:21
goal 13:4
good 3:5,23 4:22 7:15 12:20
 13:13 31:14 35:25 37:25 38:1
 41:2 42:11 55:12 60:8 62:1
gotta 49:17
government 3:11
Governor 27:17
graduate 30:18
graduation 23:16 54:1
graffiti 43:23
grams 21:4,5,6,7
grand 7:5 53:20
grants 38:24
grateful 34:2 41:5
gratitude 15:8
gray 48:22
great 7:11 8:3 17:22,25 19:5,6
 32:3 39:6 41:16 48:21,24 49:4
 51:15 64:21
Greektown 44:9
Green 12:25 13:2,5,9 44:5
Greg 10:11 17:12
Griffe 14:5
Griffie 5:4,16 6:5 14:6,18
 16:19,20,21 23:24,25 24:1,19
 25:16 31:25 32:1,2 64:6,7,8

ground 33:13
 group 13:1 15:5
 Grove 58:23
 guardians 52:6,7,10,12
 guardianship 46:1
 Guidance 44:8
 guns 21:3
 gunshot 19:14,19,25 20:2
 guy 36:1
 guys 7:18 49:4,22 62:2

H

half 62:16
 halfway 33:9,15
 hand 22:21 24:23 25:11
 handle 36:16 45:14 48:5
 hands 8:17 22:14 27:17
 handshakes 23:8
 happen 44:4
 happened 20:1 27:6 34:11
 61:22
 happening 22:6
 happy 20:13 49:20
 hard 24:21 41:25 42:3 43:22
 62:4
 hardy 13:12
 harm's 56:13
 Hayes 10:20 40:25 41:2,4,10,
 19 42:16,17
 Headquarters 9:8 11:1 20:1
 43:5 58:20
 health 8:14,21 11:19 44:7,8
 49:21,22 52:3,6 53:17 58:8
 hear 41:14 51:16 56:5 60:12
 heard 53:22 59:20
 heart 60:3

held 43:4 56:17
 helped 57:1
 helpful 56:22
 helping 62:21
 helps 43:2
 herewith 15:7
 heroine 21:7
 hidden 40:6
 high 11:15 19:2 46:5,22 56:24
 57:4
 highest 14:3
 highlight 7:6 39:7 41:25 44:12
 45:23 50:22
 hired 30:10,19 37:13
 historic 7:8 56:21
 history 7:9 19:3
 hold 9:10 33:20 43:13 52:13
 59:4 60:22
 holding 24:12 52:10
 holiday 9:7 43:13
 Holly 3:25 16:23 26:19 27:23
 29:7 33:23,24,25 34:23 35:17
 36:8,20,25 49:2,3 50:5,18
 54:22,24 55:3,12 56:1
 Holly's 62:20
 Holt 3:23,24 5:15 6:4 12:13,14
 37:9,10,11,24 38:15,21 39:22
 54:8,21
 home 8:19 19:17,19,22,25
 20:4 22:15,16 25:1 49:18
 Homeland 27:16
 homeless 45:24,25 46:2,7
 48:15,18 51:6 59:22 60:1
 62:16,21
 Homicide 61:6
 homicides 20:8,17 25:21,23
 26:2
 honor 14:10

honorable 30:4 41:2 53:11
 59:18
 honored 7:8 15:16
 honoring 10:10 12:12 14:11
 16:22,25
 hope 8:3 31:21 46:18
 hoping 51:12
 hospital 49:25
 hospitality 43:12
 host 11:14
 hour 45:1
 house 24:13
 housed 24:18
 Households 11:11
 HR 30:5
https://twitter.com/detroit_tmc. 45:6
 hug 23:7
 hugging 23:9
 hugs 23:6
 Human 10:17 30:2 53:22
 hundred 18:20 19:3 63:25
 64:4
 hurt 55:4,20
 hype 61:18

I

identified 31:23
 identify 32:13
 ill 46:1,3 48:15
 illegal 21:6,10
 illness 46:20
 impact 51:4
 importance 8:15
 important 9:2 10:6 11:17
 15:24 16:3,7,12,15 24:24

32:17 43:8 64:2
importantly 16:12
impounded 21:4
impressed 48:15
improve 32:19 45:10
Improvement 43:9,10
improving 14:1 15:10
incident 20:1 55:23
included 53:15
includes 20:7 53:12
incoming 11:3 53:12 54:19
increase 10:4 25:22 32:24
independent 13:3
indicating 5:23 6:12 17:5
 64:16
individually 16:8
individuals 5:11 15:5 17:18
 52:9
inform 38:16
information 10:7 11:10 25:15
 27:19 35:1 36:17 38:18
informed 8:17,22 41:25
ingenuous 58:9
initially 33:5
initiating 57:7
initiative 20:25 42:1 45:24
 46:1,16 48:16,21,25 51:16
 59:22 62:15
initiatives 32:16 52:3
injured 8:25 9:4 19:11,13,16,
 21
input 10:1
instance 23:3
instituted 46:15
institution 7:11 27:2
institutions 26:23

insurance 55:7,8 56:6
Integrated 44:7
intend 60:17
interact 48:16
interaction 57:8
interest 12:25 30:11
interested 11:8
interim 11:1 53:8
interior 45:15
intermittent 31:3
interrupt 50:12
interrupting 12:7
introduce 4:15,19
introduced 4:16 5:1,11
introductions 3:20 4:6,9
investigates 9:15
investigation 54:4
Investigator 11:6 12:1 57:17
invitations 11:12
invited 3:15 57:9
Invocation 3:16,18
involved 13:6
involvement 14:25 16:15
involving 55:15
issue 29:20 39:21 52:25
issued 20:3 21:3 47:25 48:1,4,
 9
issues 10:23
it- 36:19
items 10:7 53:13,15
Ivery 7:4,7,10,24 8:1

J

jail 24:3 47:2 62:19,23

James 15:3
January 21:1
Javaun 42:10
Javon 10:20
Jessica 10:12 17:12
Jesuit 44:5
Jesus 37:1
Jim 3:25
job 34:12 47:7 49:5 52:17
jobs 35:6
Johnson 10:21 15:18 19:12
 41:1 42:10,11 47:12,19 48:3,
 10 49:1 50:4,20 51:24 52:23
 53:1,4 59:5,9
join 14:16
joined 39:10
joining 3:10,12 5:6 8:12
Jones 60:14
Jr 11:15
judge 46:24 52:13
July 32:9 40:11

K

Kado 10:10 12:12,14,15,17,
 18,22 13:7,15,18,25 14:7,8,23
 15:9,14,16 16:22 17:1,9,20
 42:1 50:2
Kado's 13:7
Karimore 10:12 17:12
kicking 40:11
kids 16:13
killed 62:9
Kimberly 19:23
kind 23:7 34:2 36:1 60:21
King 11:15
kinks 33:4

Kit 53:18
knocked 59:25
knowing 14:8
knowledge 29:24
kudos 48:24 51:10

L

lack 30:11
landscaping 43:14
large 3:24,25 22:25 41:22
61:21
largest 18:24 42:20
Las 23:22
lastly 47:5 50:20
launch 32:12
laundry 37:25
lawsuits 9:21
lead 47:6 52:2
leaders 5:8
leadership 12:23 13:19 15:10
27:2 39:16 53:7
leaned 42:6
learned 13:12 33:8 38:17 50:8
leave 8:6 31:1 37:14
left 3:21 4:13 31:22
legal 31:15
lessons 50:8
letter 53:24
leverage 50:5
Lewis 47:6
liability 55:8,17
liable 58:11
liaison 42:14
Lieutenant 35:1 47:6
life 10:4 14:1 15:11 16:16

51:10
lift 51:8,15
lifted 57:10
Light 12:25 13:2,5,10 44:6
lighting 43:13
limit 58:25
limited 11:22 61:1
Lisa 3:7
list 31:17 35:7 44:3
listed 30:11
listing 9:4
live 30:21 40:19 44:24 45:2
49:4 60:4
lives 16:11 50:16
local 3:11 25:10
located 44:20 58:20,23
lockdown 24:8
Lodge 35:20
long 13:15 18:8,13 35:18
long-term 19:14
lose 40:14,21
losing 39:13 63:11
lost 30:24 31:6
lot 42:24 49:11 60:4
LSA 39:16
Luther 11:15

M

Madame 4:3,8 6:24 16:19
19:10 22:14 26:19 28:4 29:7,
16 33:23 39:5 40:14 42:11
48:13 51:1,2,3 53:10 54:22
55:6 56:15 57:11 59:2,5,14
63:21 64:6
made 8:4 33:18,21 37:16,19
39:25 40:17

madness 61:17
mailing 11:24 12:3
major 14:12 27:2 44:25 45:16
make 17:17,23 18:1 19:4,5
22:2,11,24 26:9,11 28:17 33:1
34:22 36:10,11 37:12 44:4
45:3 50:15 51:6 57:15 61:12
makes 43:24
making 22:5,13 26:7 27:13,17
34:14,20 35:25 52:5 55:6
58:10 60:13
maloxa 33:11
man 17:24 49:16
management 31:13 44:13,15,
20,24 45:7,12
managing 45:12
manned 24:4
manpower 21:25
mantra 13:14
Marcella 10:18 30:3
March 3:2 5:14,18 6:3,7 11:15
20:6 43:6 58:18 62:6,10
marijuana 20:21 21:5
mark 19:21 64:5
Market 12:17,19
Marlon 26:8
Martin 11:15
masks 22:21
materials 11:16
matter 27:16
Mayor 9:17 26:21 32:6 37:1
39:18,24
Mayor's 36:5,23 37:15
MCOLE 30:13
meaningful 56:22
means 33:9 61:14

measures 8:20
media 4:11 25:12 32:23
medical 31:12 33:20
meet 7:3 9:8 23:4 33:8,15
 34:22
meeting 3:7,9,11,12,15 4:10
 8:3 9:10 11:7 12:7,10 26:24
 32:3 36:25 37:2 39:16 43:6
 54:2 58:18,21 63:24 64:20,21
meetings 23:1 58:3 60:2 61:2,
 3,4
meets 9:6
Member 34:7
members 15:12 30:20 37:4,17
 40:20 41:3
men 17:16 19:4
mental 46:6,20 49:21,22 52:3,
 5
mentally 45:25 46:3 48:15
mention 51:6
mentioned 21:12 24:5
merits 14:3
meth 21:7
Mexico 60:22
mic 7:21 18:22
Michigan 3:1 15:12
Midtown 63:3
million 45:22
millions 62:9
mind 14:16 51:14
minister 18:14
minutes 6:2,7 59:1
misdemeanor 9:24 11:9
misdemeanors 21:2
Mitchell 10:12 17:13
model 38:8

modify 23:7
moment 20:6
Monday 20:6 37:1 43:4
monetary 14:15
money 63:9,10,13
monitoring 44:23
monitors 9:16
month 9:10 30:5,15,24 31:6
 40:20 43:4 51:17 63:12
monthly 3:6
months 32:11 35:18
motion 5:14 6:1,3,15 17:8
 64:8,19
motor 19:16,22
motto 13:14
mouth 23:11
move 4:6 6:17 16:21 54:7 63:7
moved 5:15,17 6:4,6 16:24
 64:11
moving 29:25
multiple 22:23
Municipal 47:24

N

named 19:1
narcotic 46:2,7,20
narcotics 21:11
nation 19:6
Nazis 26:13 62:6,14
necessities 12:19
needed 13:4 52:11
neglected 59:6
neighborhood 42:14 44:6,9
neighborhood- 50:17
neighborhoods 16:6 63:4

Neo 26:13 62:6,14
Network 44:7
news 24:20
nice 17:20 32:7,16
night 45:9
no-- 58:19
non-criminal 9:15 11:9
non-fatal 20:8,18
north 59:10
Northeast 44:7,8
nose 23:11
note 38:5 51:6
noted 21:8
notice 36:10
noticed 21:11
notorious 23:6
November 41:10
number 11:24,25 13:2 31:21
 36:18 37:13 53:16,24
numbers 30:6,9,23 31:1,9,23
 32:8
numerous 13:5

O

Oakland 39:9,11
objective 10:3 12:10
objectives 45:14
observation 34:4,16 63:23
occasions 29:15,21
occurred 11:1
odd 62:11,12
offenders 62:18
offer 35:19
offered 36:4
offers 8:8 43:12

office 10:21 11:6,25 12:1
34:10 36:5,7 42:14

officer 9:1 19:12,15,18,21
56:4

officers 8:25 9:4 19:12 24:24
30:7,18,21 31:4,5,6,7,18,22
34:13 37:13 39:10,12,13
40:10,21 63:11

officials 5:7

oldest 18:23

on-line 11:12 29:22

open 60:6 61:2

opened 12:18

opening 7:6 49:20

operates 44:19

operation 21:18 23:2 27:10

operations 9:16

operator 31:11

opportunity 18:18 39:21
41:11 51:20

opposed 5:24,25 6:13 17:6
46:13 64:17

opposition 63:24

Oral 58:24

order 22:2

orderly 12:10

ordinances 21:3

Organization 44:6

Organizations 8:21

organizers 50:9

originally 32:23

outline 56:22

outstanding 14:24 15:10

oversight 9:13,19 10:2

P

p.m. 3:3 9:9,11 58:18,22 64:22

packet 10:8,9 53:12

paid 42:7 45:19,20 52:7 53:3

Pancake 56:16

pancakes 56:20

pandemic 8:14

paper 31:16

parade 26:14

paramount 18:17

parents 18:9

Park 45:19

parks 42:25

part 16:14 20:7,20

participating 23:21

partner 41:11,13,15 42:9 43:1

partnering 46:17

partners 41:25 43:24 44:3
50:23

partnership 42:21 44:10 47:2

partnerships 42:5,19,20 43:8
50:6

parts 16:5

party 43:13

pass 40:5

passed 30:16,17

passing 33:10

past 20:14,16 53:19

Patrick 7:13,15,16,22,23

patrol 31:11 62:24,25 63:4,6

patrolling 63:8

Patterson 38:3

Paul 10:10 12:12,14,15 13:25
14:23 15:9 16:22 17:1,20 42:1

44:5

pay 39:17,20 40:11 45:18
63:10,12

payback 47:15

paying 35:21

PD 39:12

peace 58:7

peaceably 61:22

people 14:14 16:4 21:21 22:13
23:5,7 24:21 25:1,3 26:13
33:19 34:6 35:4,5,11 38:22
40:3,5,14 44:2 46:6,11,14
48:1,21 51:19 56:25 57:1,9
58:10 60:23 61:3,5,7 62:9,13
63:12,25 64:4

percent 20:15 33:22 41:21
62:11,12

perform 21:20

period 20:12 26:6 31:22 61:6

periods 9:8

permanently 30:12

perseverance 13:8

Pershing 56:24,25

person 13:6

personal 49:5

personnel 10:19 22:15,22

persons 58:8

perspective 51:9

Pete 44:5

Petri 38:7

ph 10:11,12,13,21 19:12,15,
18,23 33:12 42:10 52:2

phone 11:13,25 23:4 28:10
36:17

phones 12:5

physical 30:14,16

pick 11:16

picked 39:12
picking 62:22
picture 14:16
piece 52:6 56:21
pills 21:6
place 12:5 21:17,21 22:7
 60:11 61:19
placement 16:11
places 47:17 50:10
plan 21:18,19 22:2,8 27:5,10,
 14,21 62:5
planners 44:17
planning 42:25
plans 22:6 25:24
Pleasant 58:22
pleasure 14:8 41:18
plug 38:21
point 44:12
police 3:6 4:14,20,25 9:6,12,
 14,17,18,24,25 10:19 11:1
 13:3,18,22,23 14:4,21,22
 15:3,19 16:1 17:21,22 18:4,15
 21:19 22:4 24:4,23 27:4,11,20
 28:5,14,18,22,23,25 29:1,3,5
 30:18,25 31:7 33:2,3,14 34:13
 37:14 38:25 39:10 41:4 42:6,
 8,13 43:5,15 44:1 45:17,18,21
 46:8,9,13 47:20 51:3,8 53:24,
 25 54:3 56:4 62:5 63:11
policies 9:18,21,22 29:4
policing 42:19 45:16
policy 29:9
poor 48:18
populating 16:6
position 57:17
positions 21:22 31:11,12,13
positive 51:8,21
possibly 37:22

posting 57:21
postings 57:14
postponed 23:15
postponing 23:20
potentially 32:18 58:10
practices 9:25
precautions 8:16 21:16 24:17
precinct 19:16,20 21:25
 25:10,11 38:2 41:6,12,13
 56:16,17,23 57:2,6,8 58:22
prefer 37:23
prepared 21:17
present 14:21 15:6 42:9
presentable 44:1
presentation 53:23
presentations 10:17
presented 10:18,20 15:7
 17:11
president 7:7,10 8:1
presidents 19:1
pretty 31:14
prevent 12:6
pride 48:4,7 62:7
primary 8:15 45:13
priorities 9:2
prisoners 24:13
private 13:4 55:16,18,22 61:14
private- 55:21
privilege 24:25 41:5
problem 39:17 59:12
proceedings 64:22
process 30:10 35:2,10
processed 32:25
processing 57:19
products 24:21

professionally 12:9
program 18:24 31:8 32:8,13,
 15,21 33:1,3,5,16,19 37:18,19
 38:5,9,18 39:22 40:18 46:1
 52:1 57:1
programs 42:22 51:8 57:3
progress 8:4 33:4
Project 12:24 44:5
properties 44:5 49:7
property 27:4 55:16 58:8
proposal 51:21
proposed 13:2
prosperous 8:10
protect 9:20 10:3 55:9
protection 9:1
protest 47:23 48:5,11
protests 48:6
protocols 21:16 22:12
provide 3:16 9:5,13 11:2
 12:18 21:22 45:8 58:7
provided 3:17 31:15
providing 22:3,19,20
public 9:8 11:22 12:23 13:8
 19:2 25:8 26:25 43:5 58:7,20
 60:25 61:12,13,14
purchased 28:25
put 21:21 38:25 43:3 56:12
putting 21:16 22:6 62:18,22

Q

qualified 35:9
quality 10:4 14:1 15:11
question 24:11,19 25:20
 29:14 37:19,23 47:22 52:21
 55:12
questionnaires 11:13

questions 23:23 24:2 25:18
28:3,4 38:13 39:2 47:10,14
50:25 52:18 60:12

quick 18:21

Quin 4:10

quorum 4:4

R

Race 23:21

races 49:14

raised 39:23

Rally 11:14,18

ramp 24:6

ran 35:3

ranked 9:1

rash 24:20

rate 40:19,21

reach 25:9,12,14

reached 45:5

reaction 61:8

read 12:13 20:23

ready 27:7

real 44:20 45:2 62:25

reason 22:1 31:10 33:21

reasonable 12:11

receive 15:19 42:8

received 17:20 32:5,12 51:2

receives 9:3

receiving 11:12

recent 10:25 11:18,20

recently 7:8 8:13 33:18

recognition 14:22,24 15:2,9
53:16 63:14

recognize 56:2

recognized 52:15 56:25

recommend 34:20 35:5,11,18

recommendation 29:2 51:15
52:1

recommendations 57:15

recommended 34:5 35:3
47:16

recommending 35:4

record 5:9 25:23 59:19

recovered 21:4

recovering 19:13,17,19,22,25
20:4

Recruit 53:25

recruiting 30:9 32:4,19 39:19

recruitment 32:14

reduce 25:24

refer 53:11

reference 54:9 64:3

regard 26:4

regular 63:4

regulations 9:18 29:4

reimbursed 45:17

reimbursement 45:20 47:18,
20

reimbursements 52:22

relates 25:20,23 48:2 54:11

relations 25:12 63:5

relationships 50:6

remarks 7:14

remember 18:7 36:21

remind 11:11 57:13

reminders 11:5

remote 25:2

remove 43:23

renaissance 13:19

renamed 63:2

renewed 46:2

repeat 62:18

replacing 40:22

replicated 52:16

report 6:17 9:3,5 19:9,11
20:13 21:15 24:2 26:1 29:25
30:1,2,5,20 31:5,24 32:3,4,10
34:1 37:12 39:6,9 40:25
42:15,16 45:8 49:4 53:6,8,16,
21 54:4,19

reporter 4:13

reporting 21:9

reports 45:9

represent 6:18

representatives 5:8

request 54:2

requesting 10:21,23

require 53:14 54:15

requirements- 34:22

residency 30:20

resident 14:23

residential 41:21

residents 7:1 10:4 12:20
42:23 43:7

Resolution 10:9,14 12:12
16:22,25 17:20 50:2

resolve 54:11

resolved 13:21

Resource 53:17

resources 10:17 30:2 50:21
52:11 53:22

respectfully 10:15 12:9

respond 48:23 51:25

responded 5:20,22 6:9,11,14
17:2,4,7 52:20 58:16 64:13,
15,18

respondent 36:24

responding 22:4
responsibility 9:20 34:9
responsible 29:3 62:9
rest 33:17 64:21
restricted 31:4
result 30:15
resumes 35:13
revenues 47:15
Reverend 62:20
review 29:22 53:15
reviewing 35:15
revolving 46:4
ridiculous 63:8
rights 10:3 58:5 61:1
river 53:20 59:11
rob 49:10
robberies 20:9,19
Robbins 19:21
Robert 37:6
Rodney 7:13,15,22 41:13
roles 13:19
room 8:6
rooted 13:11
roughly 41:20
routines 50:12
rule 8:5 60:15
rules 9:18 29:4
run 12:10 14:12
running 49:15
runs 22:4 46:13
rush 45:1

S

safe 8:10,22 16:4 24:25 41:24

42:2 43:11 63:7
safety 8:14,16,20 9:1,8 11:21
 12:23 13:8 40:23 43:5,12
 45:14 58:7,8,20
said- 36:24
sanctioned 53:19 56:5
sanitation 22:19
sanitizer 24:23
sanitizers 22:21 25:11
Saturday 11:14
saving 51:10
scale 23:1
scheduled 30:16,17 57:20
school 11:15 56:24 57:4
schools 19:2 26:25 27:1,15
scoring 35:10,15
Scotty 59:16
scout 18:23,24 19:3 41:12,14
 42:9 46:15
Scouts 18:2,8 19:1
scrutinized 38:7
seconds 8:18
secret 39:25
Secretary 11:2 53:8
Section 53:11 58:6,11
securing 27:4 45:16 47:8
security 27:16 42:25 45:15
seized 21:3,5
send 35:10 38:19 57:18 61:12
sending 22:15 52:11
sensitive 53:20
sentence 58:6
separated 31:18
separation 31:6 39:7
Sergeant 4:9 52:1,2,14,17

serve 13:16 18:17 36:10 41:6,
 24
served 12:19
service 13:13,14,25 14:19,24
 15:1 18:5 19:8 47:1 51:11
 59:7
services 4:11 6:18,19,23
 10:19 12:24 13:1 14:2 18:10
 22:3 40:25 41:7,12,15,19
 42:8,10,12,15,18 43:14 44:6,
 14,19 45:10,18,21,24 46:9,11,
 23 47:4 59:21
servicing 19:4
set 38:8
Shank 52:2,17
Shank's 52:14
Shannon 8:1
share 18:9 42:7 57:11 64:5
Shay 4:12
Sheriff 39:10,11
Shirley 3:13
shooting 10:25 20:18
shootings 20:9
shop 26:10
short 5:5
shortly 52:16
show 49:16 51:18 55:20
showcased 38:3
showed 12:25
shown 12:22 20:14
shows 55:18
shut 22:1 56:9
shutting 63:24
sick 22:16 61:1,2,4,5
side 31:15
signed 15:2,12

significant 20:13 42:25
Simple 40:6
simply 13:15
sir 15:4 59:13
sitting 4:19
situation 26:8 54:11
sixty 49:20 50:1
skip 22:2
sleeping 62:16
sleepy 62:3
sleeve 23:12
small 41:22 44:3
snapshot 42:4
sneezing 23:10
son 18:14
sort 38:7 62:4
sought 12:24
sound 61:16
sounds 50:20 62:21
source 32:14
south 59:11
Soviet 61:20
speaker 14:20 55:14,21,24
 59:15,16
speaking 13:22
Special 19:24
Specialty 46:19
specific 21:9 25:15 27:11
 44:11
specifically 22:9 45:1,2 46:19
 47:8
speed 40:5
spend 62:2
spent 49:24
spirit 12:7 15:1,6

spoke 15:18
sponsor 43:16
sports 45:12,13,15 63:10
squelch 61:9,12
St 44:5
stadiums 41:23 47:15
staff 4:7,14,16,18,25 30:19
 36:23 37:4
staffing 30:6
stand 4:14 5:8
start 11:12 39:1 40:17 46:18
started 12:17 32:23 45:25
 60:2,23
starting 4:13
Stat 43:3,4
state 26:25 27:15,22 32:6
 37:16 44:16 46:6 52:8
State's 11:19
stated 4:23 13:15 22:14 26:1
 27:10 40:16 64:1
states 31:18 58:6
Station 28:15 63:20
statistics 10:22 20:5,23
status 43:7
stay 8:22 22:16 49:23,24 62:4
staying 8:17,19
step 17:13 33:1
Steven 52:2
stick 52:5
Stingray 28:6,20,24 29:15,23,
 24 60:18 63:16,17
Stinson 3:16,17
stolen 21:4
stop 18:16 63:13
store 12:18
straight 62:3

Street 49:6 50:8 58:20
strenuous 33:12
strict 9:22
strong 13:8
student 30:18
stuff 49:5
style 61:21
success 13:15 16:3
successful 32:15
succession 21:18
sue 60:17
suffered 19:18,24
Sunday 53:19
supervisory 9:13
supplies 22:9,19
support 5:16 6:5 8:24 12:23
 13:11,17,25 14:15 38:24
 41:14 59:22,24 62:19
supported 5:18 6:7 16:25
 64:12
supposed 52:8 56:9 57:14
surfaces 22:24
suspected 21:5,6,7
suspended 31:5
suspending 58:3
suspension 31:4
sustained 20:2
sworn 23:17 30:7,8,20,24
 31:1,3,4
synergy 44:22
system 35:14 61:21

T

table 11:7,10 40:17
takes 35:18

taking 8:6 21:16 24:17 61:19
talk 20:5 38:9 41:15 50:11
 62:5
talking 7:1 26:24 27:3 29:19
 32:18 39:13 57:2
tap 29:17
taping 4:10
tasked 27:13
tasks 21:21
taught 13:13
taxpayer 55:17
taxpayers 42:7
team 46:10
technology 28:24 60:19,21
telephone 11:23,24 12:2
tells 32:11
Temple 59:10
temporary 30:11
ten 14:10 30:24 39:10
terms 26:23 27:3 39:13 48:24
 51:3,5,22 56:19,20
test 33:7 40:6
testing 30:13
Thanksgiving 9:7
thing 18:22 35:19 43:23 45:7,
 23 52:5 55:1 56:10 60:3,14
 62:15,24
things 14:12 17:15 32:19
 44:11 52:4
thinking 56:24
thoroughfares 44:25
thought 33:5
three- 59:3
threshold 33:9
thrived 12:21
Thursday 3:2 9:9 58:18,21

Thurston 19:15
ticket 48:3,8
tickets 26:15 47:25 48:1
Ties 54:2
time 3:20 4:4,6,19 5:3,5,7,9,13
 6:2,19,21 7:12 10:13 12:5,11,
 21 14:13 16:11 17:10 19:8,18
 20:4 26:17 28:23 29:10 30:1
 34:20 40:24 44:20 49:24
 52:24 53:7,14 54:5,9 57:4
 58:24 60:7,19 61:6,23 62:2
times 12:21 22:23 46:4,13
tired 54:24
tires 55:2
tissue 23:11,12
today 3:15 10:9,16 16:13
 17:19,24 18:2 22:23 26:9
 41:14 42:1,4
Todd 53:21
told 36:22
tonight 6:16,17 54:15
tonight's 3:14
tool 50:22
total 30:8,9,25 31:5 45:20
totally 33:6
touching 8:18 23:10
track 21:13
tracking 28:10,19
traditions 18:19
traffic 19:20 44:13,14,16,17,
 19,22,24 45:2,7,11 47:5
trained 43:19 46:25
transmittable 61:15
transmitted 57:17
transparency 10:1
transparent 37:13
travel 23:22

treat 12:8 48:19
tremendous 25:22
trending 26:3
Trumbull 59:9
trust 56:7 57:6
Tuesday 10:8
twelve 31:10 39:12
Twitter 45:4
type 43:24 51:13,14 57:3,7
typically 35:9,12

U

U.S. 54:1
U.S.A. 61:7
unable 46:22
unacceptable 29:18
understand 32:17 61:17
underway 13:9
undue 61:8
Unfinished 56:14
unfinished- 54:7
UNIDENTIFIED 14:20 55:14,
 21,24
uniform 56:4
unique 41:20
Unit 19:24 47:7
unnecessary 9:25
unsaid 16:2
update 10:22 45:4
updates 9:5 10:24 11:3 44:24
 45:3
upper 23:12
urban 42:24
urgent 49:21
urging 8:16 22:16

usurp 34:12**utilize** 12:2 29:23**utilizers** 46:5,22**utilizing** 8:19 29:24

V

vacancies 31:14**Vegas** 23:21**vehicle** 19:17,22 55:15**vehicles** 21:3,4**venues** 41:24 45:12,13,15**version** 62:20**versus** 40:7**vests** 43:18**vibrate** 12:6**Victims** 19:24**video** 55:3,5**viewing** 3:11**violation** 60:16**violent** 20:15**VIPS** 5:7**virtual** 31:11 62:24**virus** 8:13,17 10:25 11:20,21
21:14 23:13 26:20 58:4 61:7,
10**viruses** 61:15**visit** 11:10,16**visitation** 24:8**visitors** 10:4 12:20 24:7,12,15
42:23 43:7**visual** 4:11**voice** 12:3**volunteered** 13:6**volunteers** 11:16**vote** 57:21

W

waiting 30:13**Walden** 19:12**walls** 8:9**wanted** 6:22 36:21,23 38:11
57:11**warrant** 24:14 28:22 29:10**Warren** 39:12 53:20**washing** 8:17 22:13**Washington** 27:6**watch** 52:8**Wayne** 7:3,6,17 24:14 26:25
44:7 47:2 62:19**ways** 43:15**wear** 43:17**website** 11:17 35:6,12**week** 8:23 9:7 29:11,14 34:15
37:16 53:13 54:18 57:21
64:21**weekly** 9:3 53:12**weeks** 20:24 29:14,20 58:3
64:2**weigh** 39:18 40:7,10**welcomed** 16:5**welcoming** 7:11,14**well-being** 8:14**west** 59:10**whatever-** 29:15**white** 4:3,5,7,8 11:2 51:13
53:9,10 54:13,18 56:13 57:15,
16,22 62:13**William** 4:1**Willie** 3:22 5:5**Wilson** 26:9**window** 39:8**winter** 12:23**women** 16:1 17:16 19:4**wonderful** 17:18**wondering** 32:9 47:25 61:16**word** 36:13**words** 14:7 15:15 18:10 27:1
29:17 34:14 35:23,25 61:10**work** 13:12 16:8,11 17:16,22,
25 18:4,16 20:15 22:20 26:7
33:3 35:6 41:16,25 42:2,5,24
43:22 47:20 51:21 52:14 60:8,
11 62:4**worked** 12:15 32:5 49:25**workers** 12:20**Workforce** 7:23**working** 12:17 25:1 32:17,21
33:2,4 35:2 49:16**Workmans'** 33:20**works** 9:17,23 35:8 44:14**workshop** 56:21**World** 8:21**worried** 61:8**worthy** 15:2**wound** 19:14,19,25 20:2**written** 30:14**wrong** 34:17**Wyrick** 58:13

Y

ya'll 47:14,18 60:7**year** 18:17,18 19:23 25:23
30:9 31:18 32:19 45:25 50:14,
23 51:2,7,17,22**year-to-date** 20:11**years** 12:16 14:10 15:22 18:20
19:4**yellow** 43:18

yesterday 57:18

Yolanda 3:15

York 61:20

young 13:12 18:18 19:4 38:6
40:3 47:24 56:25 57:1,9

youth 18:2,8,16

Z

Zone 43:9,10